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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

To,
The Members of
Bhuvee Stenovate Private Limited (“the Company”)

Directors present the Sixteen Annual Report of the Company along with the audited financial
statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2023.

1. Corporate Overview:

The Company was incorporated on 7" November, 2007 and it is engaged in the business of
manufacturing and trading of steel products. The Company’s registered office is situated at
Kolkata, West Bengal.

Due to financial distress and insufficiency of funds, the Company was unable to serve its
scheduled debt from banks and financial institutions and went into Corporate Insolvency
Resolution Process (‘CIRP’) under which it was sold as going concern to Laser Solar LLP

with effect from 25" June 2022. Accordingly, the new management / directors have taken
charge and continued the business operation of the Company.

2. Tinancial Highlights:

Particulars FY 2922-23 FY 2021-2'2
(Amount in INR Lakhs) | (Amountin INR Laklis)

Revenue from Operations 401.16 682.55
Other Income 30.74 1.00
Total Income 431.90 083.55
Cost of material consumed - 322.25
Changes in inventories 183.84 602.96
Purchase of Traded Goods 518.32 =
Employee benefits expense 140.92 32.54
Finance costs 21.82 6.06
Depreciation and amortization expense 1,599.33 4,942.64
Other expenses 621.32 167.44
Total Expenses 3,085.56 0,073.90
Profit before tax (2,653.66) (5,390.36)
Total tax expenses - -
Loss for the year (2,653.66) (5,390.36)
Other Comprehensive Income for the year - (3.40)
Total Comprehensive Income for the year (2,653.66) (5,393.75)

Plot No. F1 F5, Sector F, PO-Jakpur, Vidyasagar Industrial Park, Ruisanda,
Rupnarayanpur, Jafala, Kharagpur, West Medinipur, West Bengal - 721301
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3. Review of Operations and State of Company’s affairs:

During the period under review, the Company's revenue was INR 401.16 Lakhs compared to
INR 682.55 Lakhs in the previous year. The Company has incurred a net loss of INR
2,653.66 Lakhs in the current year, in comparison to a net loss of 5,393.75 Lakhs in the
previous year.

Due to a default made by the Company in the repayment of credit facilities granted by UCO
Bank (a financial creditor), UCO Bank approached the National Company Law Tribunal
(NCLT), Kolkata Bench, to initiate the Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP)
against the Company under the Insolvency and Bankruptey Code, 2016 (IBC). Eventually, on
12" March 2019, NCLT, Kolkata Bench, passed its order to admit UCO Bank's application
for initiating CIRP against the Company.

Due to the non-submission of a resolution plan, NCLT passed an order of liquidation on 7%
February 2020. Subsequently, in compliance with the IBC and in accordance with the
Insolvency and Bankruptcy Board of India (Liquidation Process Regulation) 2016, the
Liquidator invited offers for the sale of all the assets of the Company as a going concem. The
Hon’ble NCLT, through an order dated 16" June 2022, confirmed the sale by private treaty
in favor of the highest bidder, Laser Solar LLP ("Acquirer"). Further, the Hon’ble NCLT
directed the Liquidator to take further steps in accordance with the law. Upon receiving the
order from NCLT, the Liquidator issued a Sale Certificate bearing Ref. No.
LIQ/BSPL/SC/LSLLP/22-23/114(N) dated 25 June 2022. The date of issue of the Sale
Certificate is considered the acquisition date, i.e., 25" June 2022.

Subsequently, the State Bank of India, a Financial Creditor of the Company and also a 36%
shareholder in the Shareholders’ Consultation Committee, filed an appeal challenging
NCLT’s order dated 16" June 2022 with the Hon’ble National Company Law Appellate
Tribunal, Delhi (‘NCLAT?). NCLAT heard the matter and passed an order on 25" January
2023 for another round of bidding. Following the NCLAT order, another round of bidding
was conducted, and subsequently, the final sales certificate dated 25" June 2022
("Acquisition Date") was issued by the Liquidator in favor of Laser Solar LLP, being the
highest bidder for the acquisition of the Company, with a total consideration of Rs. 61.05
crore, out of which Rs. 1 crove was given in favor of equity share capital and the balance Rs.
60.05 crore for unsecured loans. The Acquirer, Laser Solar LLLP, made an application with
the NCLT for several reliefs on 4" May 2023. The Hon’ble NCLT granted the reliefs as
mentioned in the relief application vide a relief order dated 17" October 2023.

4. Change in Nature of Business, if any:

During the period under review, there was no change in the nature of business of the
Company.
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Share Capital of the Company:

[ssued and paid-up share capital of the Company as on 31% March 2023 was INR
1,00,00,000. The paid-up share capital of the Company was revised as per the NCLT’s relief
order.

Dividend:

During the period under review, no dividend was recommended.

Details relating to Deposits:

The Company was acquired by Ms. Laser Solar LLP under the IBC on a going concern basis
with a total consideration of Rs. 61.05 Crores, out of which Rs. 1 Crore was given in favor of
Equity Share Capital and the balance Rs. 60.05 Crores for unsecured loan. Since Ms. Laser
Solar LLP (one of the shareholders) is LLP, the unsecured loan is treated as Deposit u/s 73 of
the Companies Act, 2013.

The details relating to deposits, covered under Chapter V of the Companies Act, 2013 is as
under:

¢ Deposit accepted during the year: Rs. 60.05 Crores.

o Deposit remained unpaid as at the end of the year: Rs. 60.05 Crores.

s Deposit remained unclaimed as at the end of the year: Nil.

¢ There is not any default in repayment of deposits or payment of interest thereon
during the year.

The details of deposits which are not in compliance with the requirements of Chapter V of
the Companies Act, 2013: Nil.

Other than the above, the Company has not accepted any deposits from the public and as
such, no amount on account of principal or interest on deposits from public was outstanding
as on the date of the balance sheet.

Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or Investments under section 186 of the Companies
Act, 2013:

The Company has not made any investment, given guarantee and securities during the period
under review. Therefore, there is no need to comply with the provision of Section 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013.

Y/ vy
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Particulars of Contracts or Arrangements with Related Parties:

All related party transactions entered during FY 2022-23 were conducted in the ordinary
course of business and at avm's length price. None of these transactions with related parties
are subject to the provisions of Section 188(1) of the Companies Act, 2013. Consequently,
the disclosure of related party transactions, as mandated by Section 134(3)(h) of the
Companies Act, 2013 in Form AQC-2, is not required. Appropriate disclosures, as per the
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS-24), have been provided in the notes to the Financial
Statements.

Reserves:

During the year under review, the Company has not transferred any amount to the General
Reserve.

Report on performance of Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Venture Companies:

During the period under review, the Company does not have any subsidiary, associate, and

joint venture company.

. Annual Return:

Not Applicable as the Company does not have website.

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR):

The provisions relating to Corporate Social Responsibility as provided under Section 135 of
the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

. Director’s Responsibility Statement:

Pursuant to the requirements under Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, with respect
to Directors’ Responsibility Statement, Directors hereby confirm the following:

a. that in the preparation of the annual financial statements, the applicable accounting
standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating to material
departures, if any.
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b. that such accounting policies have been sclected and applied consistently and
judgement and estimates have been made that are reasonable and prudent so as to
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as of 315 March 2023
and of the profit and loss of the Company for the year ended on that date.

c. that proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and
other irregularities.

d. that the annual financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

e. that proper internal financial controls were in place and that the financial control were
adequate and were operating effectively and

f. that proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws
were in place and were adequate and operating effectively.

Details of dircctors, IXIMP appointed and resigned during the year:

The Company being a Private Limited Company, none of the Directors are required to retire

by rotation.

As the Company is acquired under the IBC, new Directors, Mr. Devesh Goel and Mr. Akshat
Goel, were appointed as additional directors of the Company w.e.f. 08.07.2022. While Mr.
Sandeep Goyal, Mr. Jai Kumar Goyal, Mr. Himanshu Goyal, and Mr. Anjani Kumar Goyal,
resigned from the post of directors of the Company w.e.f. 16.08.2022.

Further the Company is not required to appoint any other Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)
under the said provisions.

Committees of the Board:

The board of directors has not constituted any committees during the year under review.

Declaration of Independent Directors:

Since the Company is a Private Company, the provision of Section 149 (6) of the Companies
Act, 2013 related to declaration of Independent Directors is not applicable to the Company.
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18. Formal Annual Evaluation:

Since the provision of Section 134 (3) (p) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 8 (4)
of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is not applicable to the Company, the statement
indicating the manner in which formal annual evaluation has been made by the Board of its
own performance and that of its committees and individual directors was not prepared.

19. Company’s Policy Relating to Directors Appointment, Payment of Remuneration and
Discharge of Their Duties:

Since the Company is Private Company, the provision of section 178 of the Companies Act,
2013 related to policy on directors’ appointment and remuneration and other matters is not
applicable.

20. Particulars of Employees and Related Disclosures:

The Company has not employed any individual whose remuneration falls within the purview
of the limits prescribed under the provisions of Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013, read
with rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remunecration of Managerial Personnel)
Rules, 2014.

21. Number of Meetings of the Board During I'Y 2022-23;

The Board of Directors of the Company met five times during the period under review. The
intervening gap between the two board meetings was within the period prescribed by the
Companies Act, 2013.

S N Meetings of the No. of Directors on Total number of
Pl 0. Board the date of meeting | Directors attended
] 08.07.2022 2 2
2 16.08.2022 2 2
3 24.08.2022 2 ’ 2
4 05.12.2022 2 2
5 27.03.2023 ) : 2

Till 25" June 2022 (acquisition date), the Company was managed by the Liquidator and the
new Directors were appointed on 08.07.2022. Therefore, the board meeting details post
appointment of new Directors were reported here.
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22. Attendance of the Directors:

The Board met five times during the period under review. Attendance of Directors in these
five meetings are as under:

Sr. Name of the Director Board Meetings

No. No of meetings which No. of meetings
were entitled to attend Attended

1 M. Devesh Goel 5 s

2 Mr. Akshat Goel 5 5

23. Auditors:

Statutory Auditor:

M/s. Mahesh Udhwani & Associates, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No.
129738 W) was appointed as the statutory auditors of the Company for the Financial year
2022-23 and for a period of further five years from Financial Year 2023-24 to Financial Year
2027-28 in the Annual General Meeting to held on 30" September 2023.

The statutory auditor’s report does not contain any qualifications, reservations, or adverse
remarks or disclaimer. Accordingly, the comments of the Directors on qualifications,
reservations or adverse remarks in the Statutory Audit Report are not applicable.

Cost Audit:

The maintenance of cost records as specified by the Central Government under sub-section
(1) of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 are applicable to the Company and hence, the
Company maintains all such accounts and records, but the Cost Audit is not applicable to the
Company as the aggregate turnover of the individual product or products or services does not
exceed such limits as specified under the Companies Act, 2013.

Secretarial Audit:

Since the Company does not fall within the class of Companies as mentioned in section
204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the applicable rules made thereunder relating to
Secretarial Audit Report, the Company has not appointed any Company Secretary in Practice
as Secretarial Auditor and therefore the said Secretarial Audit Report is not annexed to this
report. Accordingly, the comments of the Directors on qualifications, reservations or adverse
remarks in the Secretarial Audit Report is not applicable.
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Internal Auditor

The Company is not required to appoint Internal Auditors as the Company is not satisfying
the criteria specified under Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 13 of

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,

. Disclosure of Orders passed by Regulators or Courts or Tribunal:

During the year under review, following orders were passed by the authorities:

A. National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT), Kolkata’s order dated 16" June 2022:

Due to non-submission of resolution plan, NCLT passed an order of liquidation on 7"
February 2020. Thereafter, in compliance with the IBC and in accordance with the
Insolvency and Bankruptcy Board of India (Liquidation Process Regulation) 2016,
the Liquidator invited offers for sale of all the assets of the Company as going
concern. Hon’ble NCLT, vide the order dated 16" June, 2022 confirmed the sale by

private treaty in favour of the highest bidder, i.e. Laser Solar LLP (“Acquirer”).

B. National Company Law Appellate Tribunal (NCLAT), Delhi’s order dated 25"

January 2023:

State Bank of India, who was a Financial Creditor of the Company and also holding
36% shareholder in the Shareholders® Consultation Committee has filed an appeal
challenging the NCLT’s order dated 16™ June, 2022 with the NCLAT. NCLAT has
heard the matter and passed order on 25" January 2023 for another round of bidding.
Post NCLAT order another round of bidding was conducted and thereafter, the final
sales certificate dated 25" June 2023 (“Acquisition Date”) was issued by Liquidator
in favour of Laser Solar LLP, being the highest bidder for acquisition of the Company
with total consideration of Rs. 61.05 crore out of which Rs. | crore given in favour of
equity share capital and balance Rs. 60.05 crore for unsecured loan.

Other than the above, no orders have been passed by any Regulator or Court or Tribunal
which can have an impact on the going concern status and the Company’s operations in

future.

. Internal Financial Control Systems:

The Company has an adequate internal financial control system, commensurate with the size,
scale, and complexity of its operations. The Internal Audit Department monitors and
evaluates the efficacy and adequacy of internal control system in the Company, its

compliance with operating systems, accounting procedures and policies of the Company.
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Vigil Mechanism/Whistle Blower Policy:

Since the provisions of section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the rules made
thereunder is not applicable to the Company, the Company has not formulated a Whistle
Blower Policy to establish a vigil mechanism for directors and employees of the Company to
report the concerns about unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the
policy.

. Statement Concerning Development and Implementation of Risk Management Policy

of the Company:

The Company does not have any Risk Management Policy as the company’s internal control
system is commensurate with the operations of the company.

Disclosure under the Sexual IHarassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013:

The Company is committed to provide a safe and conducive work environment to its
employees during the year under review, Directors further state that during the year under
review, there were no cases filed pursuant to the Sexual Harassment of Women at
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

Disclosure under the Insolvency and Bankruptey Code, 2016:

Following application has been made under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016:

Sr. Application Details Particular Status as on
No. 31.03.2023

Comp. App. (AT) (Ins.) No. 1013 | Appeal application filed by the | Disposed of.
I |of 2022 (National Company Law | financials creditor against the
Appellate  Tribunal,  Principal | order of NCLT, Kolkata dated
Bench, New Delhi) 16" June 2022,

There are no pending proceedings under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 as at
the end of the financial year.

Transfer of Unclaimed Dividend to Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF):

This clause is not applicable as since the incorporation of the Company, the Company has
not declared any dividend. Therefore, the Company does not have any unpaid/unclaimed
Dividend which could be transferred to the [EPF as per the provisions of Section 125 of the
Companies Act, 2013.
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31. Conservation of Energy, Technology absorption, Foreign exchange earnings and outgo:
a. i Conservation of energy:

i) the steps taken or impact on | During the year under consideration the
conservation of encroy. Company  has  not  performed  any
i) the steps taken by the company f{or | manufacturing activities hence this clause is

utilizing  alternate  sources  of | not applicable.

energy.

iit) | the capital investment on energy

conservation equipment’s.

b. Technology absorption:

i) the efforts made towards technology absorption NIL
i) the benefits derived like product impravement, | NIL
cost reduction, product development or import

substitution

i) | in case of imported technofogy (imported during | NIL
the last three years reckoned from the beginning
of the financial year)-

(a) the details of Technology imported NIL
b) the year of import; NIL
(c) whether the technology been fully absorbed NIL

() if not fully absorbed, areas where absorption | NIL
has not taken place, and the reasons thereof

iv) the expenditure incurred on Research and | NIL

Development

& Foreign Exchange Earnings/ Outgo:
Particulars FY 2022-23 (Rs. in Lalzhs)
Foreign Exchange Earnings 0
Foreign Exchange Outgoings 0

32. Material changes and commitments, if any, affecting the financial position of the
Company which have occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company to
which the financial statement relate and the date of report:

During the period from the end of the {inancial year to the date of this Report, there were no
material changes and commitments that have affected the financial position of the Company.




33. Secretarial Standards.

The Company has cormplied with the applicable Secretarial Standards as prescribed by the
Institute of Company Secretaries of India and notified by the Central Government from time
to time.

(%]
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors,
Bliuvee Stenovate Private Limited

For BHUVEE STEMQVATE PVT. LTS, For BHUVEE STENQVATE PVT. LTG

/r/;é /% s /Vg

\\. v
‘ Birectot Directal
I AP ST S
Mr. Devesh Goel Mr. Akshat Goel
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Date: 29.12.2023 Date: 29.12.2023
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MAHESH UDHWANI & ASSOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

3rd Floor, Satyam Building,

Opp. Old Vuda Office, Fatehgunj,
Vadodara - 390 024, Gujarat, India
Ph. : 0265-2785858, 2785959
Website : www.maheshudhwani.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of
Bhuvee Stenovate Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinian

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Bhuvee Stenovate Private Limited (“the
Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, the Statement of Profit and Loss
(including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash
Flows for the year then ended and notes to the financial statements including a summary of significant

accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the financial
statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of ourinformation and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under
section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended,
(“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company
as at March 31,2023, and its loss, total comprehensive loss, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the
year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (“SA"s)
specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described
in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (“ICAI”) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics. We
believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit

opinion on the financial statements.




Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note 41 of the Financial Statements, which describes the accounting treatment with
regard to going concern sale of the company to give effect of final order of National Company Law Tribunal
(Kolkata Bench) as a part of liquidation process under Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code 2016.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s
Report but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The above-referred
information is expected to be made available to us after the date of this audit report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon,

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above when it hecomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the information, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are
required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and take appropriate actions
necessitated by the circumstances & the applicable laws and regulations.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions
of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give
a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ahility to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could

reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional

skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

¢ ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
orerror, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsihle
for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internfil financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

¢ Lvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going

concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in

a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control

that we identify during our audit.




We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other

matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Other Matter

The comparative financial information of the Company included in these financial statements, are based on
the previously issued financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 which were audited by the
predecessor auditors who, vide their report dated May 31, 2022 have expressed a qualified opinion on
certain matters as described in their report.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in Annexure “A”, a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

N2

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

b. in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books, except that the Company does not maintain the
daily backup of the books of account and other books and papers maintained in server physically
located in [ndia in electronic maode;

c. the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and loss including other comprehensive income, the
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account;

d. inouropinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS prescribed under Section
133 of the Act;

e. onthe basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2023, taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2023, from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act;

f.  The observation relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith,

are as stated in paragraph (b) above
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8- With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial

statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
reportin Annexure “B”.

h. with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, the Company has neither paid nor
provided for, any remuneration to its directors during the year; and

. with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

(i) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses.

(i) The Company has no long-term contracts as at March 31, 2023 for which there are no
material foreseeable losses. The company did not have any derivative contracts as at March
31, 2023;

(iii) there were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education

and Protection Fund by the Company;

(iv) (a) the management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium
or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or
entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) the management has represented, that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, no funds
have been received by the company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding
Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of
the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (i) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b)
above, contain any material misstatement.




{v) No dividend has been declared and paid during the year by the company.

(vi) Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for maintaining books of
account using accounting software which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log)
facility is applicable to the Company with effect from April 1, 2023, and accordingly,
reporting under Rule 11(g) of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 is not applicable
for the financial year ended March 31, 2023.

Mahesh Udhwani & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 129738W

Mahesh Udhwani

Partner

Membership No: 047328
Place: Vadodara

Date: 29" December 2023
UDIN: 2RO YT 32%5BTZY IDA92E




ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT

(referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our
report of even date to the members of Bhuvee Stenovate Private Limited)

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books of

accountand records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and
helief, we state that:

a)

(b)

(b)

{A) the company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of property, plantand equipment.

(B) The Company has written off all the Intangible assets at the time of management
transfer (June 25, 2022 “Acquisition Date”) and therefore, reporting under clause
(i)(a)(B) of the Order is nat applicable to the Company.

The Company has a program of physical verification of Property, Plant and Equipment to cover
all assets within a period of three years, to be carried oul at one time or split over a number of
times, which in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the
nature of its assets. Pursuant to the program, all items of Property, Plant and Equipment were
physically verified by the Management during the year. According to information and
explanations given to us, the company had conducted physical verification at the time of
management transfer and accordingly written off all such assets which were appearing in the
books but physically not existed.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the registered sale deed/conveyance deed provided to us, the title deeds of immovable
properties are held in the name of the Company.

The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no proceedings have heen
initiated during the year or are pending against the Company as at March 31, 2023 for
holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of
1988) (as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder.

The inventories were physically verified during the year by the management at reasonahle
intervals. In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
coverage and procedure of such verification by the Management,isappropriate having regardto
the size of the Company and the nature of its operations. Further, at the time of managernent
transfer, physical verification of inventories were conducted and management has written off
all such inventories which were appearing in the books but physically not existed.

According to the information and explanations given to us, at any point of time of the year, the

Company has not been sanctioned any working capital facility from banks or financial institutions
and hence reporling under clause {ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable. //f{ 75:@?%%
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The Company has not made any investments in, provided any guarantee or security, and granted any
loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability

Partnerships or any other parties during the year, and hence reporting under clause (iii) of the Order
is not applicable.

The Company has not granted any loans, made any investments, or provided any guarantees or
security to which provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act apply and therefore, reporting under
clause (iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
received any directives of the Reserve Bank of India. However, the company has complied with the
provisions of Section 73 to 76 of the Act and the rules framed thereunder, wherever applicéble, in
respect of deposits accepted or amounts which are considered to be deemed deposits.

The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government under sub-
section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 for the business activities carried out by the
Company and therefore, reporting under clause (vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records, the Company generally has been regular in depositing with appropriate
authorities undisputed statutory dues, including provident fund, income-tax, goods and services
tax, cess and any other statutory dues applicable to it. Further, no undisputed amounts payable
in respect of income tax, goods and services tax, cess and other statutory dues were in arrears,
as at March 31, 2023 for a period of more than six months from the date they become payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there are no dues of Income tax, duty of customs, goods and
services tax which have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

Statutory dues, whether disputed or otherwise, pertaining to the periods on or before the
acquisition date, have not been considered for reporting under clause (vii) (a) and (b) In
pursuance of NCLT order dated October 17, 2023 (refer note 41 to the Financial Statements).

According to the information and explanations given to us, no unrecorded transactions in the books
of account have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments
under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).

(a) As referred to in Emphasis of Matter Paragraph the company has been given specific relief
against any Liabilities as present on Acquisition date and the same are to be settled by the
Liquidator as per Section 53 of the IBC Code 2016. Accordingly, all liabilities including financial
and operational in nature have been waived off and hence as on the date of March 31, 2023 no
financial dues from any financial institutions are present in the hooks of accounts of the
company. Hence considering that all prior defaults and their respective liabilities have been
waived by the company the same are not required to be reported under this paragraph.

(b) According to the information given to us, the company is not a declared willful defaulter by any
bank or financial institution or other lender.




Xi.

Xii.

Xiii.

XIV.

(c) The Company has not taken any term loan during the year and there are no outstanding term

loans at the beginning of the year and therefore, reporting under clause (ix) (c) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
Balance Sheet of the Company as at year end i.e. March 31, 2023, we report that no funds
raised on short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes.

(e) The Company does not have any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures and hence, reporting
under this clause of the Order is not applicable.

(f} The Company does not have any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures and hence, reporting
under this clause of the Order is not applicable.

(a) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instrument) during the year and therefore, reporting under this clause of the
Qrder is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and therefore, reporting under clause (x)(b)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) To the best of our knowledge and according to information and explanations given to us, no
fraud by the Company or on the Company has been noticed or reported during the year;

(h) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in Form
ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the
Central Government, during the year and upto the date of this report;

(¢) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not received any
whistle-blower complaints during the year.

The Company is not a Nidhi company and therefore, reporting under clause (xii) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, transactions with the related parties are
in compliance with the section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 and where applicable, the details of
such transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable Indian
Accounting Standards. Since, the company is a Private Limited Company, hence provisions of section
177 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable.

(a) The company has been sold as a going concern vide Sale Certificate issued by the Liquidator
dated June 25, 2022 to Laser Solar LLP. Following the sale, the management transfer is still taking
place accordingly the new management is yet to implement its internal audit system and to
appoint an internal auditor in terms of section 138 read with rule 13.

(b) As Internal Audit could not be conducted by the new management due to reasons referred
above, the reports of the Internal Auditors for the year under audit have not been considqred. ‘
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XVi.

XVii.

XVili.

XiX.

XX.

In‘our apinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with directors and
therefore, reporting under clause (xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

Inour opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us:

(a) the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934,

(b) the Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities during
the year as covered under the requirements the Reserve Bank of ndia Act, 1934,

(c) the Companyisanota Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations made by Reserve
Bank of India.

(d) The Company does not have any Core Investment Companies which are part of the Group.

The company has incurred cash losses in the current financial year amounting to Rs. 1054.33 lakhs
and in the immediately preceding financial year of Rs. 447.70 lakhs

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and therefore, reporting
under this clause of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other
information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and
management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions,
nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as
on the date of the audit report that company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the
date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet
date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the company. We
further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither
give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from
the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the company as and when they fall due.

Based on the examination of records of the Company and information and explanation given to us,
the Company is not required to spend any amount for Corporate Social Responsibility activity for
current financial year.




xxi.  The Company is not required to prepare consolidated Financial Statements and therefore, reporting
under this clause of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

Mahesh Udhwani & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 129738W
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ANNEXURE “B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

{(Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our
report to the Members of Bhuvee Stenovate Private Limited on the financial statements of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements under Clause (i} of Sub-
section 3 of Section 143 of the Act.

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Bhuvee Stenovate
Private Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the vear ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Cormpany’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Nole on
Audit of Internal Financial Contrals over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (“ICAI”). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsihility

Our responsibility is to express an apinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our auditin accordance with the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the, “Guidance note”) issued by the ICAI and
the Standards on Auditing prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit
ol internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements. Those Standards and the Guidance
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
stalements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material

respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the

design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.




Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

A company's intemal‘ﬂnancial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
stalements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In-our opinion, to the hest of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company
has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements and
such internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were operating effectively as at
March 31, 2023, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reparting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Mahesh Udhwani & Associates

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No: 129738W ooz
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Bhuvee Stenovate Private Limited
Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2023
(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

As at
Pacticulars Notes 31st March 2023
ASSETS
i Mon-current assets

(2} Property, plant and equipment and intangidle Acsors
P ! Ne1tH UILe 5
fl} Propenty, plantand equspment 3 5,565.34
{ii} intangible assets
(o} Capita! work-In-progress
{c] Financial Assets

As at
31st March 2622

48,695.95
0.64
5,623.05

(i) Other financial asset 4 62,52 3.47
(d) Other assets 5 = 57.70
5,627.85 54,380.90
I Current assets
{a) lnventories 6 540.36 1,522,829
{b) Financial Assets
(i) Trade receivables 7 12213 88.30
(¢1) Cash aad Cash a2quivalenis 8 4.01 824.75
(iii} Othar Bank Balances 383
{iv) Other Finarcial Assats 0 - a7.es
{c) Current Tax Assots 11 2.30 15.49
() Other current assats 12 962.58 1,389.91
1,632.30 3,912.83
Total Assets 7,260.16 58,293.74
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQuUITY
L Shareholders' Funds
(a} Share Capita! 13 160.00 4,709.57
(b} Other Equity 14 45.87 (71,793.80)
Total Equity 140.87 {22,000.23)
LIABILITIES
. Mon-current Liabilitics
(a) Financial Lizbilitios
(i) Barowings 15 - 53,867.98
(b) Provisions 15 C.54 73.93
0.54 53,941.91
i, Current Liabilitics
{3} Firorcial Liabilitios
{i) Barrowings 17 8,774.40 25,240.09
(it} Trade Payables 18
-total outstanding dues of micro enterprisas and
small enterprises - 56.27
-lotat outstanding dues of creditars other than
micre anterprises and small enterprises 272.85 702.22
{iit) Other financia! Habilities 18 67.41 121.66
(b} Other Currant Liabilities 20 3.99 314.36
(¢} Provisions 21 0.00 7.46
7,118.75 26,442.0€
Total Liabifitics 7.218.29 80,383.97
Total Equity and Liahilitics 7,260.i6 58,293.74
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies ito2
Notes on Financiai Statemerits 3-az

The notes referred o above farm an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached For Bhuvee Stenovate Private Limited
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Bhuvee Stenovate Private Limited

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year eaded 31st March 2023
{All amounts are in INR Lakhs, unless oliverwise states)

For the yearended  For the year ended

Particulars Motes 31st Miarch 2023 31st March 2022
1L Income
Revenue from Operations 74 401.16 682.55
Clirer income 23 30.74 1.60
Total Income 431.90 681.55
1. Expenses
Costcf material consumed 24 - 322.25
Changes ventones of finished goeods, we
prograss and steckein-teade 25 183.84 602.96
Parchase of Traded Goods 518.32
Employee benefits expense 26 140.92 32.54
Finonce costs 27 21.82 6.06
Oepraciation and amortization expense 3 1,599.33 4,942.64
Other expenses 28 621.32 167.44
Total Exponses 3,085.56 6,073.89
. Profit befare tax (2,653.66) (5,290.35)
V. Toxexpenses 30
Curcent tax =
Leferred tax S
Total tax expenses = -
V. Lossfor the year (2,653.66) {5,350.35)
VI Other Comprahensive Income
Ali] ltems that will not ke reclassified 1o prefit or logs 29 - (3.40)
(it} Incame tax refating to items that will not ba reclassified to
prefit or loss
Other Comprehensive Income for the year - (3.40)
Vil Total Comprehensive Income foc the year (Vv +vi} {2,653.66) (5,393.75)
vill Basic and diluted Earnings per equity share of face vatue
" of Rs. 10/- cach 32 (a.29) (2.02)
Summary of Sigaificant Accounting Palicios ito2
Notes on Fingncial Statzments 3.47

The notas referrad to abave form an intezrsl part of the financ'al statements

As per our repoert of even date attached For Bhuvee Stenavate Private Limited
Mahesh Udhwani & Associates
Chartered Accountants
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Bhuvee Stenovata Private timited
Cash Flow Statement for tho vear ended March 31, 2023
[All amounts are in IR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

As at As at
31st forch 2023 31st March 2022
A Cash Flow from Operating Activitios
Profit / {Lass) before tax for the year {2,653.65) (5.393.75)
Adjuztments for -
Bepreciation and Amartization Expense 1,596.31 4,942.54
Finance Costs 6.08
intzrest income on Sccurity Deposits
Provision for Gratuity
Loss on exchange diiference 5.74
Operating Profit/ (Loss) before changes in operating assets and liabilities {1:027:25) (439.25)
Adjustmients far changes in operating assats and liabiiities:
{lncrease) / Cecrease in trade reccivables {125.50) (5.92}
(Incraase} / Decrease in Inventories 930.39 925.20
(Ineraase) / Decroase in Other Curzent Assats (162.49) -
{Increase) f Cecrease in Other Financial Assets {85.40) .
(increase) / Decrease in Other Aseots 57.79 12432
Increase / {Decrease) in Other Financial li nility {420.93)
increase / (Decrease] in Olher Current Liabilities {310.35) .
increase / (Decrease) in trade rayakle 272.95 {7.52)
Incresse / {Decrease} in provisions {0,54) 11.24
Cash {used in) Operations (861.85) 607.97
Direct Yaxes {paid)/ refund {2.30) -
Net Cash used in) Operating Activities (864.15) 607.97
8. Cash Flow from Investing Activities
laterest lncome on Security Deposits 1.34
Net Cash used from / {used in) tavesting Activities 1.34 -
C. Cosh Flow from Financing Activities
Proceeds froin issuance of 2guity shares 100.c0 -
Unsecured loan taken 6,746.00 -
Repayment of nan-current borrowings {6,300.20) (54.10)
Finance Costs {21.82) {5.06)
Net Cash used from / {used in) Financing Activitics 574.18 {54.16)
Netinerease / (decrease) in cash and cash eguivalent (A4 5 + L) (288.63) 543.81
0. Cashand cash equivalents
Netincrease / {decrease) in cash and cash aquivatent (288.63) 543.81
Cash zad cash equivalents al the beginning of tha yoar £48.58 304.78
Balonces of Cash and Cask aquivalznt write off (555.04) -
Ceshand cash equivaleats ot the ead ¢f the year 4.91 843.58
(3) cash and cesh equivalents coasist of tash on hand and balance with banks and
deposits with banks.
In Currant Accounts 244 823.24
Fixed Deposits with banks - 23.83
Cashin Hand 2.47 L84
Cash and cash cquivalents as at year end 4.91 848,58

The above Cash Flow Statement has Eeen prepared under the ‘Indirest Mothod”
s sl gutin the Indian Accouating Standard on ‘Statement of Cash Flows (ind
AS-7)" issued by The institute of Chartered Accountints of tadia.

The accompanying Nutes form an integral part of these Financial Statements

As per our report of even date attached For Bhuvee Stenovate Private Limited

Mahesh Udhvrani & Associates —_ Forn BH UVEE STE NOVATE VT_ LED‘,‘ ;

Chartered Accountants
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Place: Vadodara * Place: Kalkata Place: Kolkata

Date : 29th Becember, 2023 Date : 29th December, 2023 Date : 25th December, 2023




Bhuvee Stenovate pri

ate Limited

Noles to the financial statements for the yeor ended 315t March 2023
(Allamounts are in INR Lakhs, unless othorwise stated)

s

Corporate Infarmation:
Bhuvee Stenovate Private Limitod |

@ Company''} having CIN UZ7100WB2007PYC120297 was inzorporated on 7th November 2007 and engog:
the business of manufecturing and trading of stee! products. Dus i
scheduled deot from banks and financial institutions and went inte
concern to Laser Solar LLP with effect from 25th lune 2022 ("Acquisitic

iin
encial distross andg insufficiency of funds, the Company was unable to serve ity

nparate Insoivency Resolution Process {'CIRP') undervihich it was sold as going

Statement of Compliance

These Finencial Statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards {referred to as “Ind AS"} as preseribed under
section 133 of the Cempanies Act, 2013 ceact wills the Companies {indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2018 and other reiavant provisions of the Act
and Rules thereunces, as srended fram lime (RT3 T

Significant Accounting Policies
2.1 Basis of preparation and presentation:
The financial statzments have been prepared on an aecrual basis under the historical cost convention except for certain financial

instruments that are messured at faic value/omortised cost/Present valye at the end of each reporting period, as expiainad in the
accounting policias below,

Historical costis generally based on the fair value of the consicleration given in exchange for gouds and szrvices,

The Finzncial Statements have Leea gresented in Indian Rupees {INR), which is aiso the Carmpany's functional currency, Ali values sre
rounded ofi to the nearest lakhs {with two decimals), unlsss othanvise indicated.

The rormal course of Gperating ¢

&

. considering the nature of the industry, has been assumed to have duration of 12 months,
Accordingly, all 2ssets and ligbilities have been classifies as current or nor-current as per the Company’s operating cycle and other criteria
set outin Ind AS-1 “ Presemtation of Finsnicial Siataments” and Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013. Further, Trade receivables,
invantories aad trade pavablas are assumaod to be currs

1as per s 68 and 70 of Ind AS-1.

Fair value is the price that weuld be received to sell an asset of paid to transfer a liability in zn ordarly transaction batween markat
participants ot the mea

srement date,

elti

price
price is

chzemabe o estineied USIE anoiner vaiuation
lachnigue. Fair value of measurement and/or disclosure surpose in thesy finanicial stataments is determined cn suzh a vasis, except for
ceitain measurements that hav

18 Lo fair vaiug, such as value in use’ under Ind AS-36.

Fair value measurements ara eperised into Levei 1, 2. or 35

2d on the degree to which the inputs to tha fair vaiue measurements ars

observable and its significance in the fair value measurement, which are described below:

¢ Level I inputs are quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or labilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date;

¢ Llevel 2inputs are inputs otiar than thos:

included within Level 1, that are observabla either directiy or indirectly; and

= Level 3inputs are unobservable inputs,

The assets and liabilitias reported in the batance sheet are classified on a “current / non-current basis”, with separate reperting of assets
held for sale and lisbkilitios, Current assets, which include cash and cash equivalents, are assets that are intended to be realized, ssld or
consuined during the nermal operating cycla of the Company o in the 12 months following the balance shoet date; current iiabilitias are
liabilities that are expectad to Le setted during the norraal operating cyelo of the Cempany or within the 12 months foliowing the close of

the financial year. The deferred tax assets snd abilities are ciassified as non-current assets and labifities.

2.2 Property, Plant and Equipment:
Propenty, plant and eguipment {"PE) are stated at cost of acquisition iess accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any.
Cost ol an asset comprises of cost of soquisition or construction and ncludes, where applicable, inward freight, duties and taxes,
of replacing parts of the

instaliation expenses, prelossional fecs, crrowing costs, initial estimates of the cost of dismantling, cos
iy attribulable 1o the bringing the asset to the location and condition
ded manner and purposes. Capital Soare parts which ace integral pact of the

property, plant and equipment's and other casts dire
necessary for it to be capable of aparatmg in the in

plant and equ
When parts of an tem of property, plent ani equg

mment are capitalized,
it have differant uselul fives, thay are accounted tor as separgle ems {major

aenents) of property, ola
it
when the assets are ready for their i

Cand anu

oIt

B2 Laie vaiue 052 cost i@ sell Depraciation on PPE commences

ol are ¢e vaiue G

to be

R act03
N e
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2.6

Cepraciation on PRE is recognised in profit or loss

{streight line mathed', Following table pravides the details of useful lives of ¢

items of PPE, as determined Dy the n

ment through internsi techrical evaluation

Agset Useltul iives (estimatad by [Revised lives {estimated hy the
the management) (Years) {new Management with effect
from 25t June 2022) {Years)

Land - ieasahold 99 No Change
Building &0 25
Plant and machinery 15 2
Construgtior cquipent o 15 x
Office equipmant 4 i
Furniture and fixturas 10 3
Computers 3 3

Vebicles

]

Depreciation of these PRE commences when the wyse

Intangible asscts:
intangibic assets with finite useful life acquired separately, are recognized
foutable to the assets will flow to the enterprise and the cas

aly il it is probable that future economic banefits that are
of assets ¢an be measured relizbly. The intangidie assets are recorded at
cost and are carried at cost less accumulatad amarilzaton and accumnulated impairment losses, if any.

at

Anintangible assotis derocognised upon its disoasal or wi

en no future aconomic benefits are expected to arise from its continued use, Any
§ain or loss unsing en such deracognition is mzasured as the difference batwasn the net dispezal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset, and « racognized in profit of loss

lmpairment of Assets

At exch balance sheet date, the Company reviews th

careying velues of its property, plant and equipment and intangible assets to
determi

e wihether there is any indication that the carrying value of those assets may not be recoverable through continuing use. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the assetis reviewed in order to determing the extent of impairment loss (if any). Where
the asset does not generat

b dlows that are indegendent from other assets, the Company estimates the recoverabla amount of the

gonerating unit o which the g

belongs. Recovarabie amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and vilue in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimoied future cash flows are discounied o their present value using a prelox discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the tme vaiue of morey and the risks specific to the asset ter which the astimates of futura cash flows have
or been adjusted. An impairment loss is recopnised in the statement of profit and loss as and when the careying value of an asset exceeds

its recoverable smount. Where aa impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying value of the asset {or cash generating unit) is

incroased to the revised esti H !

s What the increased carrying value does not exceed the carrying value that

uid have been determined,

Financial Assets

Al ciach Batance sheat date, the Company essesses whether o finaacial asset is t he impaired. Ind AS 109 requires the Compazny to apply

expected cradil toss model for recognition and mewsutement of #npaicment 1oss. I determining the aliowances for doubtiul trade

cdit lass alowance for trade recaivablas based on

receivablies, the Company has used 2 pracucal axpag

Nt by cemputing the expec

provi

on inatrix. The provision matsix takes inte account historical crodit oys experience and is adjusied Tor forward lecking information,

he impairment loss is based on the againg of the recevables that sre due and allowance rates used in the provision matrix. Fer all other

financial assets, expected cadi losses are measured atan amsunt eaual to the 12-months expecied credit fosses or at an amount equal to

the fife time expected credit losses i the credit risk on the firarcial assel hes increased significantly since irutial recopnition,

Inventories
The invertories zre valued ot cost or nat realizable value whichever is lower, The bosis of determining the value of each class of inventory is
as foilawes:

Inventorias Cost Farmula
Rawy Materials At Cost on Weiphled average basis
Stores & Spares  [At Cost cn Weighted average basis

shed Goods  {Cost represents matanal, labour and manufacturing expenses and other incidental costs to bring the inventory in prasent

lecation and condition. Costis deteransied on Weighted average basis

Traded Gaods nded cost en Weighled average basis

Foreign cuccencies:
The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), being the functional currency of the Cempeny,

Adereign currency transaction is recognised in the linangial statements by zoplying the spot exchange rate at the date of the transaction, or
an approximation thareaf,
Atthe end of each repaorting periad:

*  Foreign currency denominated monetary items are transhted at the clesing rates prevailing ot that date, with the exchange difference

veng recegnised in profit or loss; and

rical cost are not translaled.

tary items that are sneasured at hi

*  Formgn currency denemiceted nan-mei

7
e
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e
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2.8

2.9

Revenue recognition:
Sale of Goods

Revenues is recognized when the Company satisf

the perfermance obigation by transferring a promised aroduct to a customer, at an
amount that reflects the consideration which the com

S 10 receive in excharge of those go

¢s. A preduct is transferred when
WIRLIA Time witen the product 15 delivered to the Customer premises

contractual torms

the customer obtarms control of that product, wh
o7 at tht point :a time when the ti!

Other Operating Revenue

Other Qaereting Revenue includes saie of seran which is recoynized an acerual basis except when rcealization of such inzomie is uncertain,

Other Income
Dther income is recognized on seezual basis axcept when realization of such income s unzertain
Leases:

AsLeasee

The Company assesses v lher a contract, s, e contains o fease, at inception of & controct. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract canveys the right 1o control the use of ar ide

fied ssset for a period of time in eichange for consideration. To assess whather a
conlract conveys the right Lo control the use of an identifivd zsset, the Company Bssesses wi
- the cantract involves the use of an identifiod asses;

- the Campany has substantially all of the economic benefits [em use of the asset throughout the period of the lease and
- the Company has the right to cirect the use of the asset,

Atthe date of commencement of the lease, the Company recagnises a lease liability for all lsase airangemenis inwhich itis a lessee, except
far leases with a term of twelve months or less (shart-term leases) and low value leases and corresponding Right-of-use Asset . For these
short-term and low value leases, the Company recognises the leasa payments as an aperating expense on a straight-line basis over the term
of the lease.

The Right-of-usa Assets are initially re

ited at cost, which comarizes the initial amount of the lease liailities adjusted for any lease
paymants made at of prior to the cemmencement dato of tha leasz plus any intial dircer costs less any jease incentives. They are
subsequently measured at cost ie<s zccumulated deprec:
liabilities.

tion and impairment losses and adjustad for aoy rameasurement of the leaze
Right af use assets are doprociated on straight line basis over the shorter of lease term and useful life of the underlying assets.

The tease Lability is initially measured at the present vaive of the future lease paymeots. The tease payments are discounted using the
intecest rate impiicit in the lease or, f iLis ot readdy determimable, usicg the incremental berrowing rate. Lease liabilitios are remeasurad

with a coriesponcing sdjustmant to the r taol if whetl

assat il the Company chanpes its ascassma

2r it vall exerzise an
CXLENSIAG O 3 lerminalion option

The Company acceunts for each lease componant within Uie contract as a fease separately from non-laase components of the centract and
allocates the consideration in the contract to each los
and the egpregete stand-elone price of the nontlea

¢ component on the basis of tha ralative stand-alone price of the iease component
enents, except for lzasas where the company has elected to use practical
expedient Aot (o separate nop-lease payments from the calcalation of the lease lizbility and ROU asset where the entirz consideration is
trested as lcase component,

Short term leases and leases of low value assets
The Company applics the short-term ie.

acopnition exemotion (0 its short-tarm !nases of Property, Plant and Equipment {i.e., those
feases that hove a lease term of 12 montns or lass from the commencament date and do aci contain @ purchase option). It also applies the
fease of low-value assets recognition exemption Lo leases that sre considered of low valug. Lease payments on shorz-term leases and leases
of low-value assats are recogrisac as expense on 2 straighi-line basis ovar the fease term or another systematic basis if that basis is more

represantative of the pattern of the fessee’s beneiit

As Lessor:

Rentzi income from cpereting lease is recognised on @ steaigh

fine basis over the term of the relevant lease cxcept wherz-

{i) Angther systematic basis is more representative of the time patlern ¢f the benelit derived from the asset piven on iease.; or

1) The payments te the lessar are structured to increase ir fine with expectod gencsalinflation to campensate lor the lessor's expected

inflaticezry cost increases.

Employee benefits:
Post-coiployment benefils
Defined Contribution Plans:

The company's contribution to defined cantribution plar pi id/payabl d o e Statement of Prafit and toss

@ lor the year 15 cha

o e



2.9

2.10

2.11 Provisiens, contingent liab

Defined Benefit Plans:

The lighilities towsrds deflined banafit schemes are determined using the Projected Unit Credit method, Actuarial valuatiens undar the
Projected Unit Credit rmethad are corried out at the balance sheet date. | Remeasurement gains/iosses arising from experience adjustments
and chenges in aciuarial assumplicns are cocognised in the pertod in which they accur in Other Comprehensive income (OCH), These
gamns/losses which are recognised in O zro raflactad in Fetained cacnings and are not reclassified (e Profit or Less, Past service cest is
recognized immediately to the exten: that the benefits are already vasted and otherwise it is amertized ¢n straight-line basis ovar the
remaining average period until the benefics becems vestey

The retirement benefiz ebligation recognised in the balance sheet regrasents the oresent value of the definad benefit obligation as reduced
by plan assets.

Short Term Employcee Benefits

All empioy

banafits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the sesvice are classified as shart term empleyac henefits ang they
are recugnized in the peniod in which the empioyue renders the related servica, The Company recognizes the undiscounted amount of short
term employee henaiits 2xpected to be paid in axcharg
periormance incontives eic,

vices rendared a5 a liability. These benefits include szlary, wages, bonus,

Borrowing costs;

acquisiticn, construction or produttion of an assat thzt necessatily takes a substantiat period of
& get ready for its intended “ie of szle are added (o the cost of thosa assers, until suc time the assets gro substantially ready for
their intendad use or sain.
Altother barrowiag cests are tecognised i profit of 10ss in the pariod in which they ara incurred,
Toxes on incomes:

Incame tax expensa represents the sum of current tax and daferred tax, Current and deferred tax are recognized in prafiz or loss, except
when they relote to iems that ace recognize

in other comprohonsiv income or directly in equity, in which cese, the refated current ang

deferred Lax are alse recognized in other comprahensive income or dircctly in equity respacively.

« Current tax;
The tox currently pavable is based on taxeble profit for the yzar. Texable proliit differs from ‘profit before tax' as reported in the
statement of weofit or loss because of items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are
naver taxable or deductible. The Company's current tax is calcutated using tax rates that have baen enzcted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period.

*  Deferred tax:
Deierred taxis recognised on temporary difierences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilitias in the financial statements
and their corresponding tax bases used in the computation of laxable profit. Deferred tax liabifities are generally recognised for aif
taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assels are recognized to the extant that it is prabable that future taxabla income will te
avaifable against which the deductible temparary differences, carry forward losses and unabsorbed depreciation. Such deferred tax
assets and labilities are not recognised if the tempoary difference afises from the initial recagnition {other than in a business
combinzticn) of assets and liabilities in 2 trenszcuon that eficcts neither the taxable profit nor tha accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferrad tax assews is reviewed at the end of each reporting pericd and reduced to the extent that it is no
tenger arcbable that suificient taxasle prefits will be availtabie to aliow all or part of the asset ta be racovered,

Deierred tax hodilitios and assets are measured at the Lag rates that are expected o apply in the period in which tha liakility is settlod
or the asset is raalzed, based on the (9x rates {oad tax Iaws) thst have baon enacted or substantively enactea by the end of the
reporting period.

es and contingent assets :
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present ablipation {ivgal or censtruetive) as a result of ¢ past avent, and it is probable
an be made of the amount of the obligation.

that the Company will be required W settle the otligation, and a reliable eslimate

The amount recopnisud as o provision is the best astimate ¢f the consideration required to setile the present obligation at the end of the
reporling period, taking into account the risks and uncertaintics surrounding the obligation. When a pravision is ineasured using the cash
flows cstimaled to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows (when the effect of the tima

value of money is matertat),

on arising {rom past events, the existence of which will be confirmed

Contingent liabilitics are disclased whon there is a possible obl
only by the occurrence ar ng; occurrence of one or more uncertain future events net wholly within the control of the Company ar a

ie the

present obligation that arises framn pust evenls where it is cither not probable that an outflow of rescurces will be required to se

chligaticn or a reliable estimale of the amount caanut be made

Contingent assets are Gisclosad in the Financial Statements by way of notes to sccounts when an inflow of eccnomic bensfits Is probable.

2.12 Eacnings por share:

2.13 Cash and cash equivalents:

weolit / (ioss) alter tox available for equily shareholders by the weighted average
any does not have any potential dilutive equity shares; hance, its dituted

Basic carmings per share is computed by dividing
numbar of equity shares cutstanding during the period. The Co
earnings par share 15 equal to the basic carn ng per chare,

J’/A% Ao/




Cash comprises cash on hand and dermand depasits wi
maturity of threa months or less from the date

ly liquid investments with zn original

ith vinks. Cash equivalents are short-term high
ounts of cash and which are subject

of acquisition that are readily canvertible into known am

ta insirificant risk of changes in value.

2.14 Financial instruments:

.

2ntef financial instremants:

Recognition and initial mea
Littics are recegnised when the Company becomes 3 paity to ths zentractual provisiens of the
recogrised on trade date basis

Financiai assets and financial hob
s are recopmsed and de,

diirchases Gr salos ;s

istrements, Al repular wa

tally eneasurnd ot fair value, Transaction costs that are directly attributable o the
@ssets and financial fiabilities at fair valye througly
the fair value of the financizl assets or financial liabilities, a5 appropriate, on initial

assets or financial fizbilities at fair value through

Finanzial assets and firsacial fabilities arz i

[ izbilities {othor than finar

atquisition or issue of finanzial assors and firan
Profit or ioss} are added to or doducted from
ion. Transaction costs dicectly attibutsble o the acquisition of financial
immediataly in grobit o juss

reco;
profitor loss are recognse

o

o




= Classification of financiat sss5etg:

Financial assets are subsequently me

C el ertirely af edher amartisad cost or fair value, depending on the dassification of
the financial assets. The Company classifizs ity finanaini assets in the ’u‘!uw'ryg maeasurar

ent tategonies

~  those to be measured s sequently at fair value teither through other comprehensive incoma, or through profit or lass); and

those measured at amaortised cost.

G Financial assots subsequently i

sied atamartisad cost:

Debt instruments that mivet the § Vang conditions ars subsequently messured at amortised cost:

asset is held within & business modal whose objective is o hold assets in erder to collect contractuat cash
flovss; angd

o the contractual terms of the instrumer

give rise on specified dates to cash flows 1
principal and interest on the principai amount eutstanding.

are solely payments of

1 Financial assets subseguently measured at fair value threugh other comprohensive income;
Debt instruments that meet the
comprehensive inco.

follewing conditions are subsequently measured st fair value through other

¢ thzassat i within 3 business modsl whese objective is achiaved both by collecung centractual cash flows

and salling

& the conteactual lerms of the ing d ¢

o

t25 to cash flows that are solely payments of

oring

wal and wntecest on the pracipal omount outsiang

D Snancal g

els subsequently mensured s fair valug thraugh nrofit or loss:
All viqer financiai assets are subsequantly measured at fair valug sheaugh profit or loss,

* impaitment of financizl assets:

The Company appli
amortsed cost,

S The expected o

Utass madel for recognising Impairmant loss on financial assots measurad at

The Company measures the loss alloveance for a !

nent at an amount cqual to the lifetime expected credit losses

antly since initial recognition. If the credic risk on a financial
ial recegnition, the Company measures the loss allowanca fer that financial
acted jit lnsses.

if the cradit risk on that finsacial instrument has
instrument has not increased sigaificantiy since init

instrument at an smount agusl to 12-month e

For trada receiva , the Comparny always

neasuces the foss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expacted credit losses.
Further, for the purpose of measuring lileime expected credic loss allowance for trade receivables, the company has used a
ractical expedient as parmitted under Ind AS 109, This expected credit. loss allowanze is computed based on a provision

matrix which takes into account historical eradic ioss experience and adjusted for forviard-looking information.

= i the Company measured lass allowance for a financial instrument at lifetime expected credit loss model in the previous
veiiod, but detarmines at the end of o reporting peried that the credit risk has not increased significantly since initizl
recagnition due to improvemens in credit quaiity as compared to the previous period, the Company again measures the loss
allowance based on 12-month axpecied credit losses

*  Derecognition of financial assets

The Company dereangnises a financial a3set whan the contractual rights 1o the cash flows from the assy
the inan
financiai asset, the differe etwien the asset's carrying amount and the consideratien received and roceivable is racopaised in

prafit or loss. The cumulative gain or Ioss in relstion @ eyuty msteumants measurad at fair value throuith other comprebensive

LUpire, or whan it tansicors

aszel angd su wlly all the ashs and rovards of aweeship of the assel w0 ancthar party. On derecognition of 5

income is not reclassified 1o prefit oc loss on disposal ¢ westments.

* Finangt

Hiobilities and equity instrue

2 Classification as debl or equi

Dbt and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified 2s either financial labilities or as equity aceording to the
nddinto and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument,

substance of the contrzciual arranpemants enie

& Equity instruments:

An equity instrument is any contract tha evidences a rasifual intecostin the assets of an entity after deducting all its lighifities.
Equity instrument issued by (4 Campany are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct isswe costs, Repurchase of the
Company’s own equity instrumert is recagnised ond deducted diceatly in equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
sale, issue or canzallation of Lhe Company's own equity instruments.

on the purchas

~ Financial Liabilities:
All the finarcia! liabilities are subsequentiy measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Golid id




= Derecogmition of financis! o bitties

The Company derecogaises financial labilities w

N, ang oniy when, the Comoany's obligation zre discharzed, cancelled or have
expired, The diffocence botween the sarrving eanount of the financial tiability derecognised and the consideration paid and payabia is
recogased in the profit or loss

+  Oiiseting Financial Instruments.
Financial assets and fabilities are offset and the ne

Tiount reported in the balanca sheet when there is a legally enforceable right to
offset the recognised amounts and there 1s an utention o setile 01 2 net Dasis or realise the asset and settie the liability

simultancousiy. The legally enforceatie ighit must mat be contingent on future evints anc must be enicrcoable in the normal course
of business

2.15 Statement of Cash Flow

Cash flows are reported using the indirect methed, whereby profit befors tux s adjusted for tha effects of tr nsactions of a non-cash
nature, aay delerr

s or accewals of post or fulure opera

0 nash feceipts of payments and item of come or expenses associated with
fiows re segregated into ap

investing or financing cash llows, Th

fating, investing and financing activities.

(i) Critical accounting estimates and judgments:
The preparation of finencial statements raquires the use of accounting estimatas which, by definition, will seldom equzl the actual resuits,
Managzmant alse needs to axarcise judgement in apoiving the Company's accounting policis

This nate provides an overview of the arcas that invalved o higher cegree of judgement or complexity, and of items which are more likely
ta be materialiy sdyusted due to estimates and assumptions turning out to be ditferant than these originaily assessed

The oreas involving zritical es

ates o judgements arc:

Contingent Liabilities and Assets

Contirgene Liakilitios are disclosed when there is 3 possibie obiigation arising from the post events, the existence of which will be confirrneg
enly by the occurre

¢ or nen - oceurrence of one or mere encertain fulure events not whelly within the control of the company or g
present ooligation that arises from the past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of rescurces will be reguired to settle or
@ reliable estimate of the amount cannot 5z made,

Recognition of Deferred tax assots
The extent to which deferred tax gssets can be recognized 1s based on an assessment of the probability of the Company's future taxable
income against which the deferred tax os

s can be utilized. in addition, significant (udpement is fequired in assassing the impacy of any
legal o: economic limits or

Uselul lives of Property, Plant and Cquipmient/ Intangible Asscts

Proparty, Plant and Eguipment/ Intanginie Assets are depreciated/amartised over their estimatod usefu! lives, after taking into account
pany’s historical experience with similar assots and
$ er commertial obsolescence. Management reviews the astimated useful lives and
mine the ameunt of depreciation/amortisation o be recorded Guring any reporting
s revised, il there are sigaificant changes from pievious astimates and accordingly,
the unsmartised/depreciabie amousnt is chargied over the remainieg useful ife of the assets

estimated residual value, The usefu! fives and rosidual values are based on the Com
taking inte sgcount anticipated techaaicgical chz

residual valves of the assots annuatly in order to det

period. The depraciation/smortisaion for future peiods

Evaluation of indicators for impairment of Progierty, Plant and Equipment

The avalustion of applicability of indicators of impaliment of assets requires assessment of external facters (significant decline asset's
value, economic er fegal environment, market interest rates eta.) and internal factors (ubsolescence or physical damage of an asset, poor
cconomic parformance of the asset ete.) which could resull in significant change in recoverable amount of the Praperty, Plant ang
Equipmen:.




impairment of Intangible Assets and intangible assets under Ocvelopment
The LOMPIOY 95503585 AL cach Balan

L date whether thore s any indication that an assei may be impaired. I any such ‘ndicztion

f set If such recoverabie amount of the assel or the recoverable amount of

vless thon s carrving amourt, the caring amount 15 reduced W its recoverable

DS and < recopmizad o the 5t et of Profit & tess f ot the reporung

s an ndicaton that there 1g chanpe i the previsusly assessed impsiement loss, the recoverabie amountas reossessed ard the assel 15

reflected at the lower of its fecoverable amount and the careying amount that is detarmined, net of deprec
been recopnized for the asset in prior yoars.

exsts, the compeny estimates the 2L

551

the cash genoratiog wnit te wh

ameunt. The reduction is trosted as an MO 7

iation, had no impairment loss

Revenue Recognition
The Company’s contracts with custamers inclidn eromises to transfer preducis o the cus
promised it a5 contract and identifies distinet

otligation involves Judgement to determing th

tomers. The Cornpany assesses the preducts
ovligations, if any, In the contract. identification of diclinet performance
s and the ability of the custemer to benefit independently from such
deliverables. zudgement is aiso required to deteriming 1hn transaction ptice for the contract. The Company also exercises the judgement in
Getermining that the performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time or ever lime. The Company considers indicators such as to who
conirals the asset os it is being created or

praduct, transfer of significant risks and

formang

getiverab!

xistence of enforccabie fight to payment for performance to date and alternate use of such
Jwards to the customer, acceplance of delivery by the custorner, etc. The judgment is also
exercised in determamng the variable considerstion, 1f any , involved in transaction price and also in astimating the impact of customer’s
right to return the goods, based on prior experienca. The compzny has exarcised judgmeats and concluded that it nas only one
parformance obligalicn from each af its contract with custerners and itis being satisfied at a peintin tima,

Actuarial Valuation:

The determination of Company’s liabilizy te

s defined henehit o yees is mace through independent actuarial valuatan

mant and in ather compret

including determination of arounts to e rezognized in the ncome stat

:nsive income. Such vaiuation dapend
upsn assumpsions det iy, promaton and other relevant factors such as supply and

demand factors in the o

zravined after tak

inio account inflation,

nioyment markor

Defined Benelit Obligation (DBO)

fanagement's estimate of Defined dcnofi Obligation {2BO) 15 based on number of critical underlying assumptions such as standard rates
of inflation, medical cost trends, rmort y, discount rate and anticipation of future salary increases, Vari
sigrificantly impact the Defined Benelit Obligaticn amount and the annual dafined venefit expenses.

ion in these assumpticns may

(i} Standards issued but not effective /mpact of new and amended ind AS
These financial statements have been srepared in accardince with Indian Accounting Standards {Ind AS) notified undar Section 133 ¢f the
Companies Aci, 2013, The financial statements have also been prepared in accordance with the televant presentation requiramants of tha
Companies Act, 20313 and presentation requirements of Sciedule [ to the Companies Act, 2013, (ind AS compliant Schedule lil), as
applicasle,

Recent Prencuncements for indian Accounting Standards {Ind AS)
New Standard / Ameadments issued but not yot eifective;

Ministry of Corporate Alfairs {"MCA"} nntifies new standa
tendards) Rules as issued from Lme to tme, On

e or amendments Lo the existing standards under Companies {Indian Accaunting

Aarch 31, 2023, MCA amended the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015
by issuing the Companies (indian Azcounting Standards) Amendment Rutes, 2023, applicabie from April 1, 2023, as balow:

Ind AS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements

The amendments cequire companies o disclose their marerial accounting s rathes than their significapt accounting gelicies,

Accourn
primary usess of genaral purpose financial statements. The Co

ting policy infarmstion, tenether with other mlormition, is matenial when it can reesonably be expecied o influence decisions of
pany coes net expact this amandment Lo have any significant impact on its

fin, | statements.

Ind AS 12 — Incame Taxes
The amendments clasify how compani
amendments narrewed the scape of the recognition exemp!ion in paragraghs 15 and 23 of Ind AS 12 (recepnition exemption) so that it na

czount for duferred tax on transactions such as leases and decommissioning obligations The

lenger spolies 1o transactions that, o il recops Love rise 1 equal taxable and daductible temporary differences, The Company is

evalualing e impact, of any, on s aancal statemoents,

Ind AS 8 ~ Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors
The amendments will help enlities to di fuish between accounting polices and accounting estimates, The delinition of a change in
actouating estimates has boen replaced with @ definition of accounting estimates. Uader the new definition, accounting astimates are

“monetary amounts in financial statements that are subject to measurement uncertainty”. Entities develop accounting estimates if

accounting policies require items in linanzial statements 1o be measured in 2 way that involves measurement uncertainty, The Company
coes not expect this amendment to have any significant impact on its financial statements.




Bhiuvee Stenovate Privite Limited

Statemeat of Changes in Equity for the year enced 315t March 2023
(Afl amounts arc in iR Lakhs, untess otherwise stated)

. Equity Share Capital
Balance at March 31, 2021
Changes w share cepnal duning the vear
Balance at March 31, 2022

Chanpes in rhare apstal duning the year
icd (R

Qd share capital cang

Shaie Copital issued
Balance at March 31,2023

{a) Other Equity

Amount
49,702.57

49,769.57

{12,709.57)
100.00
100.00

Particulars

Reserves and Surplus
= e CIVES 300 Surplus
Capita reserve on
Liquidation

... {Refer note 21§

Securitios Premium

- o
lutal Comprehensive tneome for the vezr
el GRAL

Galance at 31st March 2021

__Retained Carnings

(5%,07,69,090),

i Other Compraheasive

Tetzl
Income
——
_ 15,03,316 {53,53,65,278)|

(86,819.44}, 41.84 (66.,406.05)
sfae/Adjustnent dur € - ’ B
_ ] 5,390.35} . 15.350.35)]
Other Lompizheasive Incama for the - ™ o . 13.20) {3.40}
Total Camprenensive Income for the o = {5.320.35) (3.40) (S,393.75)
Baiance at 31st March 2022 20,371.55 - 192,209.79) 38.4a {71,759.80)
Trznsfer/Adinstimant darcing the year {20,371 9—'-} 94,904,31 - - 74,532.76
i/ (Loss) for the year - - (2,653.66) (2,653.66)
mr Coinprehensive income for the yaar - - -
Fl.a:!»(fomprchcnsiv.'a Income for the year - £4,900.31 {94,863.494) - 40.86
|2alance ar 3ist warch 2023 o 94,904.31 (94,883.44) - Wi

Also refer Note No. 42

As perour report of aven datz allached

raahesh Udhwani & Assaciates
Chartered Accountants v
firm Registeation No : 129738w

tdahosh Udhwani

Partner

Membership No : 047328
Place: Vadadara

Date : 29th December, 2023

otes rofenad to abeve farm an intepral part of te Snancst statements

it

For Bhuvee Stenovate

tvash Goel
Director
(DIN 1 02992306)
Place: Kofkata

Date : 28th December, 2023

Private Limited

o e

CERTIFIED TRUE COPY

Hdot bud

Akshat Goel
Director
(DIN: 06465043)
Place: Koikota

Date : 29th December, 2
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Bhuver Stenovate Private Limited
Notes to tinancial statements as at and for the

A Other inarcial assets - Mon Current
Unsecured, considarad rood
Secunty depanits

Total

5  Otherazsoets
Cagital advenzes

Tatal

3 laventories
Rawe matenals
Fiinistied geous / Werkan-progress
Stocesand spaces
Traded Goeds
Total

7 Tradereceivables

Teade Recavadles considered Guod - Unsocured
Less. Aliowance fer Expected Credit fosses

Totai

8 Cashand Cazh Equivalents

Qabinces swith Banks
In G

Cash initang
Total

9 Other Bank Balancos
d Depouits vat banks

(Bank deposits with matunity less tan 12 monihs)
- Batances held as margin mangy or securtity againsl borre:

Tetal

10 Cthers Financial Assets - Carrent
{esecueed consideraed yaog)

Interest azerued But net due on deposus

Total

11 Current Tox Assets (Net)
Income (ax
Total

12 Other Current Assets
{Unsecured, considered goad)
Baiances wath Slatutory Author
Prepand Lapentor

Abvance to [mployess
Advance 1& Sugpliers
Total

year ended 31t Macen 2023
Al amounts are in IR Lakhs, unless othenwise stated)

ings, guatantess and other comminanls

As at
st Marel

Asat

31st Morch 2022
Ll oren a2

5252 3.47
6257 i 347
Asat Asat
st March 2023 31stMarch 2022
— 57.99
- 5779
s atr As at
31t March 2023 313t March 2022
- 132
. 75371
20.50 767.65
514,86 .
540,31 1,522.68
Asal Asat
318t March 2023 315t March 2022
12213 83.30
122,18 52.30
Asat Asat
st March 2023 315t March 2022
2.44 823.21
237 151
4.4] 820.75
Asat Asat

31st March 2023

31stMacch 2027

23.83

23.43

3ist March 2023

Asat
3Lt March 2022

- 47.85
£ 42.85
Asat Asac
st march 2023 315t Macch 2022
230 15.45
2.30 15,49
Asat Asat

314t March 2023

215t Morch 2622

205.20 Le321a
- 1776

. 2.88
54.35 337.13
962.55 1,389.91




Shuvee Stenovate Private Linied
Hotis to financial statements asitand for the year ended 3151 March 2022
[Allamounts arc in IR Lakivs, unlesy cthiiwise stated)

13 Share Cagital

@) Authorised:;

C.Y.- 531,660,020 (2.5, - 532,000 000 Equity Shares of Rs 10/- each wah votag iiphis)

) tssued, Subseribed and fully paid-up Sharas:
362143526 Ezuity Shares af Rs. 107 2achi (ully paid up
16€.1 Sauty Shares of Rs. 10/- vach Rs, &/« pard up
10,00,020 Equity siares of Rs. 10/~ each futly paid up

<) Details of staarshioldors tiolding marg than 5% shares aluag with ovmber of shiares hele:

Asat
315t March 2023

As at Asat
315t March 2023 3ist March 2022

v sharcs of R, 20/~ cach fully
1 Fertella Hatding Co. Lig

2. Uco gank

3. United Sank of India

4 State Bank of Ing

¢ up

Eauity shares of Bs. 10/- cach Rs, 8/- paid v
Lo Evikavincam Pug g

Na. of shares

% holding

$3,160.C0
§3.100.00
- 36,614.35
y 15,204.72
100.00 .
1e.co 45,705.57
Asal

315t March 20022
No. ei shares

%5 halding

2,66,82,193
- 8,31,92,555
- 3,56,01,522
. 11.62,23,685

6.92%)
15.69%
6.71%
21.92%

1,43,30,009
2 Carel Syntex Pyt Lud ,i0,00.000
3. Wehman Sales Aency Fvt Lid . 6.50,C0,690
Equity shares af Rs. 10/- each fully paid up
1 Laser Salar LLP 128,060 e B [BRv{e53
4, Devesh Gogl LSU000 15% [¢sio)
Wishat Goel L5Co0y 15% . 0070
4. Mahavees Agarwai 159 . 0
5. Laukesh Agar 0.00%
Shaccholding of the promoturs ar e end of the financial year and 36 chanpe during the year
Shares hald by promolers at the erd of e yea 31st March 2023 315t March 202
iz % Change during the
Hame of Promoter Mo, ol Shuzes ol ol shares No, of shares a0l ol shares year
Lasur Solar LLP 4,00,000] 0f 0.00% a.
Sovesh Goel 1,50,000) 0] . O 15,
Akshat Gogl 1,590,626 C! 0% 1
1,50,000 0l o 15.
1,50,600] 0 . 0055 15.
| 314,160 0,055 -0.86%
§7,54,800 1.65%| 65%
: £2,53,500) 1.56% 56%|
Tosal 10,520,000 106,004 1,73,23,9Ca 3.27%
¢] Reconciiiation of ihe shares outslandirg is set out below:
2022-23 2021-21

Equily Shares

Of Rs. 20/- each fully paid up

Althe begnming of the vear

Ol strares canceiled os fer 8CLY arder

tow sharzsissued 25 per e NCLT order

Qutstanding at the end of the year

UL RS 16/- cath 5. 8/~ paid ap

At the beguning of the yaar

Cid chares cancelled as gar HCLT orger
Outstanding at the end of th

o) Taw company haz not alloited any share sursuant
e

iely preceding 1he Balanze Sheel date.

£ Cantraci(s) without payaent weing exceived in cas

f) There s ne 2l urpiid on shate of the company as on 31-03-2023 and 31-03-2622

i) Refae ote 31

h) Terms/rights attached ta cach class of shoees
Fquity Shaves:

The Company kas only one class of equity shares havis
dwidends e Indian rupess The dvidand proposed by the Board of Directers is su
aton of the Company, the halders of equIty shares will

I the event of

amounts. The distabutien will b2 in broaottion 1o the number of equ

18 3 par vaiue of Rs.10/-. Each holder of equity shares is

Ro. of shares

Ho. of shises

36,41,33,516

ueLue

10,00,000

36.41,28,516

16,61,83,050
{16,61,84,

15,61,33,600

16,01,54,000

.\ bonuy shares snd shares Leught back lor tia period of § yaars

entitled to one vole per shore, The Company daclaras and pays
t 1o the: approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annua General Mzeting.

*he eatilled to receive sy of the semaining assets of the company, alter distribution of all preferential
iy shares held by the <bacaholders.

S



Bhuvee Stenovate Private Limited
Notes e finanial statements a5 31 and for the year endod 3¢t March 2023
(AR dmounts are in INI Lokl wouniess staeavise oted)

Az at As ot
14 Reserves and Surplus 31st March 2023 315t March 2622
A, Securities Preniun - 2037155
5. < Farnings (93,683 44) (22.202.75)
C. Copital rseeve on Uauidation 54,904,351 -
2. Other Comprabiensive income 36.44
Tatal 4057 (71,799.20)

fielar Statoment of Changes in Equity for mavemcot in ba‘ances of Reserves,

Sacerities Fremivm tcpresonts the SMELNT rage

dm exevss of par value ¢f ¢

. Section 52 of Campanies Acy, 2013 spretify testriction and ulilsstion of selurity

Retsined Saminzs genaraliy raprosant the UNAKLDLLeS peofitssamaunt of accuimslaied carangs of the Company,
Oiner Comprehensive ncome {021 rapresent the balance in cauity relaiing le el

Statement of Profit and Loss.

wasurement gains/(Yosszs) on defined benafiz cbhgations. Tris wil! not be reclassified to

Capital reserve on Liquidation

Togive effect of the abg

WCLT efder dated 17th Octeber, 2023, the company has tanslerred all the baiances vetuch are no more receivabies of payables to cagital resérve on
liquidatics. Also refer fiate 41

Asat Asat
15 Borrowings - Non Current 31st March 2023 31st March 2022 *
= $3,867.98
Tatal - 53,867.94

* Dusctenueg seqandin

erngand conditions of Berrowings eosted as at 31at Maren 2822 15 dLgwen as alt such Borrowings are extinguished 25 per NOUT order. Rafer noie 41

Asat Asat
16 Provisions AlstMoich 2023 31st March 2022
Provision for Employee Genefit Gratuity (Refer Note ko 31) 0.5a 1164
Provision for leave encashment s 227
Total 0.54 7393
Asat Asat
17 Borrowings - Current 313t March 2023 31st March 2022
At Amerissed cost
Secured
Frem Banks . 17,660 89
from related parties [Refer Note No, 40) 6,774 .4 233.20
From other parties - 7,400.00
6,774.40 25,240.09

Teeaws of Unsecured loan received from Related Party

a.lnanitom Al finaace Private Limited
Curing the yoar, the company kas obtaned unsecured [oan from A J Finance Private Hinited wmeunling 1o Rs. .51 Crare for Interest W% p 2 repayable 0n gemand

b.Loan fram Laser Solar LLP
L Laser Solar LLP has given total Rs. 61,08 croie as verchose sensideration. Qu:
freatad 33 unsecired lean,

5. 1¢rore has been consideced fer Equity Share Capital and Balance smount has been

2. Such Unsacured loan s imigrest free and repayable afted 9 manth: s thee st of it recoipt

3. Refer note 62

o4




Asat Asat

16 Trade Payablos 213t March 2023 3151 March

Total outztanding

wes of micre enteipnses and smalt enterprises (Refor Mote e )

Tota! outstanding au

¢ of creditors ot than Micre enteprises and simat entorpiises
Ralsted Farty iReter Hote to 5.66 G52
Other 2672.29 70).63
Total 27255 758.49
Asat Asat
15 Other Fimancial Labilities 31st March 2023 31st March 2022
Pavable te emplsyres 1000 160t
Socunity Devosis 55.51 5.65
Other payelile for Expenses (Ratatet Party} 1.25 -
Enprense payablas 0.25 &
fotal G?.41 121.66
Asat Asat
20 Other Current Liskilities 31st darch 2023 3zt March 2022
Advance frem customers . 97.37
Advanes for Liquidation Cast . 8500
£ 3.92 121.99
N 395 311.36
Asat Asat
21 Provisions 31st March 2023 31st March 2022
T
Provisien [or Employee Denofit - Gratuity {Refor Note Mo 31) 6G.co 1.20
Provisian far leave enzashment J C.26
Total 0.00 746
* Represents el founding off norny
As at Asat
21 Revenue fram Qperations S1st N‘Jr:l_[_gy_‘?:! 315t March 1022
Sate of producty 1123 65235
Qe gprrating Ingome
Gale of Sgraps o 289.92 -
Tots! 401.16 642,55
#Sale of sceaps alsoinchides sake of siares and consumakia tams
fsat Asat
23 Other lncome 315t March 2023 315t March 2022
Interast income oa Secunty Deposits 134 .
Rent income 18.35
Job Work Services 1008
Miscellaneaus income J 103
Total 30.74 1.0
Asal Asar
20 Costol material constumed 315t March 2023 315t March 2022
laventary at the beganing of the year 1.32 32357
Add: Purchases duning the year * *
L255° Inventary ot the end of the yaor = (1.32)
Less: Inventory writien off to Capital ceserye on uguidatsn {Refes note 41) {1.32) -
Cost of Raw Material Consumed - 32225
TOTAL & 32225

ot o
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Changes in inventorios of finivhe | oods and work-in-progress
Inventosiez at the end uf the

24 20005 f work-in progress
Traded Goods

Inventorius at the bezinning of the yoar:
Finighed goads / Work-in-progress

Traded Gaods

Less: Invéntory wiilten off to Capsial reserve on Uquidation {Refer note

et fincrease) £ docrense

Employee benefits expensy
Satares, Woges ond Bong:
Contributon 1o Providont and oitier fvnds
Stafi Wellarz Dxpzises
Total

Finance costs
Interest Expanses
Otker finance Cost
Tel

Other txpensis
Consumptcn ol stores and spare parts
Freght & carnage ouiwsrd
Povier and fue:
Rent
Reparrs to haitdings
Repairs 1o machinery
Repasrs 10 others °
insurance
Traunlling expenses
Legal dnd professional facs

Auditars! Rony

+ Fot olier cerliiication
Security charges
Busness develapmany
Contractua Labo:
1

Rates and tases

and

bitrsten

Elng fees
Postape & Courier Charges
Ceaveyance Expunses

Exchange Flucteation

Prior Pericd (xpenses

Liueidanoa Expensas/ CIRP Expeases
Miscellancous Exo

Other Comprerensive Income
1A} e to prolitor loss
Remeazurements of the dafinad benehit plans

s that vall 6ot ba reclase

Tax expense
Current Tax
Current Tax on Profit far the yoar
Total Cureent Tax Expense (A)
Beleaed Tax
Total Beferred Tax ()
Total Tax Lxpense (A1)

facoma Tax effezt of cquity instiuments U ough O and femeasnrement gaim or loss on defined benafit plans taken tg O

et

Reconcitiaticn of Tax expense and Aczounting profit multiplicd by Inceme Tax rate a3 below :
Accounting Profis before Inzame Tax

Incomc tag expanse caicutated at 34,9345

Tay effacis of amounts wiich are not aeductble/{tayable) m coleutatng tasabic wemne

Capenses notalivw  in inge

Qaenicd forward 1o3ses and Unabisorbed deps eoiatin which Befetrod Tix gt tecognises

Deleried tar assets have not Loon recagrised m the finaneis's, as e the management there 1s absence of reasonable

castanly that sufficient taxable income in wear future wiil be dvarlable aganst which such daterred tax agsets con be

realised.

Rsat Asat
315t March 2023 33st Macch 2022

- 79371
$19.65
753.72 1,236.67
{5004

———
153.34 602.56
—_— Wedh

As at Asat
31stiaarch 2028 3Lt Marei 2022
13571 3239
168 Q02
3.53 0.14
I R T i
Asat Asat
313t March 2623 31st Maich 2022
21.60 6.05
0.22 0.0%
2132 6.06
Asat Asot
315t March 2023 313t March 2022
186.72 €.33
13.30 3.0
35.20 11.17
7.40 Coon
202.35 1ie
0.19 010
7.60 034
13.69 23.03
3.93 203
55.78 380
025 1.C0
0.05 0.30
13.63 53.68
EER Y .
45 &4 .
023 0.83
aga 287
0.82 00s
8.1 0,21
€.05 5.79
. 30.52
5.39 20.7?
8.5% 7.29
32 167.44
Asat Asat
31st March, 2023 31st Viarch, 2022
- (3.40)
£ (3.40)
Acar Asac

31st tlacch 2023 31st March 2022

{2,683.58) {5,350.35)
927.29; (1.883.60;
33948

{2.223.95}
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The Company Iiay recagnized o amount ol Rs 1 63 abbs (P 1 1

S5 exnENTes LRARr th celiney contriution lan in tha Stangalana Stuiement of
Prefit and Loss for the vaear eaded Maech 31, 2023

) Pozt Emloyment Detined Bonefis Plan-Grata
Gi2tuity &5 pad 1o ample

ty (Unfundnd)
S Uraer tha Pivenent of Gratuiy act 137> ough untunited seheme The presant valus of obigetion is determin
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tott 055
@ine
Totai amount racopmised in prefit oe loss 0.55
Remessuroments {gaing}floy:
+ Tharge i Damagrashic assumpy
- Change ia Financeal astemate -
- & varance i e Act 2}
Totat smaunt recognised in Other Comprehentive Incame -
denafts paid =
frerent valio af defined benelit obligation at end of pariod 0.55
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Bhuver Stenovate Private Limited

Nates to financial statements as at and for the year ended 315t March 2023
(Allamounts are in INR Lakhs, unloss otherwise stated)

32

33

35

Earnings / (loss) per equity share

As at As at
31st March 2023 31st March 2022

(1} Basic
a. Profit after tax {Rs. in Lokhs) {5,390.35) (5,397.19)
b. {i) Humber of Equity Shares at tie beginaing of the year (Nes) 53,03,32,516 $3,03,32,518

{ii) Number g Equily Shares al the end of the year {lNos) 10,00,890 53,05,32,516

(iii) Weiphted sverage number of Equity Shares outstanding during the year {MNos) 53,03,32,516

{iv) Face Value of each Equity Share (Rs.} 10
¢. Basic Earning per Share (a / (Sliii)] {Rs.} (2.02}
{1) Diluted
a. Dilutive potential Equity Shares
b. Weighted Average number of Equity Shares for computing Dilutive araing per Share - -
¢. Diluted Earning / (Loss) per Share [sama s {i}{z) abovej {Rs.} {4.25) (1.02)
Contingent liabitities and Commitments

As ot As at
31st March 2023 31st March 2022

A. Contingent lisbilities
{a) Claims apains: tha Company natacknowledged as debts ;
(i} Right te recompansa ] -
(i1} EPCG Licence . 31773.00
(i} Trade payable - Vi iled & case in High Court - H3.00
(V) Interess on Turn: Loans & WCL not charged . Natascertainable
{v) Income Tax for Assll. Year 2011-12 & 2017 18 g 8551.00
(b) Other money for which the Company is contingenty Liable
{i) West Berpal Salas s / VAT - 8,905.20
if} Central sates tax . 33.79
(iif) Entry tax . 360,00

l¢) Guarantees
(i} Gank Guarantee

As per the NCLT erder dated 17th Cetober 2023, all known or unknown, claimed or enclaimed, disclosed or undisclosed, crystailised,
uacrystallised, contiogent or assessed dues/liabilities/obligations/risks/ponatties etc., of any nature whatsoever and may have a financial
impact, as cn the Acquisition Date and lor the period prior to the Acguisition Date, including but nat limited to, prior claims of ali ¢reditors
{whether sacured or unseeured), workers, employecs, statutery authorities ea account of Income Tax, Sales Tax, GST, Service Tax, DGFT,

Excise, Customs atc. or sharchoiders, should be extinguished/ waived, as per Lthe provisions of the Code and Regulations thereof and
section 53 of the Code, as (ull and i
liability as 2t 31st Macch, 2073 - (Refer note 41)

speciicatly as per

al settlement of their dues. Therefore, the company does not have any contingent

8. Commitments

Capital Commitments
Lstimated amount of Contracts remaining Lo be axeeuted on Capial Azceunt and not provided for R il {PY Nil)

Opecating leases

As i lessee

The Company has lease agreement (e few pramisas vhich a1 i Lle noture of operatag lease. The tengie Gf fcast ore luss ihe 1 year and
are caneelable cements and are renewable by mutual consent

e, Flrere is no abligatan for rencwal of these loas

As at As ar
31st March 2023 31st March 2022

Laase payments recognised in the staternont of Profit and Loss duning tha year

740 0.22

Asalessor
For Lthe year ended For the year cnded
31st March 2023 31st Morch 2022

Tperating lease pertains 1o part of lactory building giver on short term lease. This loase is
fur a pericd of 12 months. 19.35 "

Segment information
The Company's aperations are mainly related to manufacturing and trading of Steel basad products. Considering the nzture of Company's

business, as well as based on reviews by the chiaf aperating decision maker to make decisions about resource allocation and performance
mes: cng, there is only one reportable sepmant in accordanca with Lha requireinents of ind AS 168 -"Operating Sepments”, srescribed

urder Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, Vhe ¢ ‘s operations are mainiy confined within india and 35 such thore

2re no reportabie geographicel segmaent




Bhuvee Stenovate Private Limited
Noles to financial statements as at and for the year ended 31st March 2023
Al amounts are in INR Lakhs, uniess otherwise stated)

36

Financial Instzuments disciosure

(A) CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Particulars

Ref Note Na.

As at
31st March 2023

Asat
31st March 2022

Financial Assets
Measured at Amoctised Cost '
Trade recewables

Casinand Cas ivalents
Gther Financial A
Qther A

Totalfinancial assets measured at amortised cost

5 - Nen Current
Non Current

Measurad at Cost
Totalfinancial assets measured at cost

Measured at Fair Vajue through Profit or Loss
Total Financial Assets measured at Fair Value througih
Profit or Loss

Measured at Fair Value through Othee Comprehenisive
[ncome

Total Financial Assets measured at Fair Value through
Other Comprehensive Income

Financial Uabilities
Measured ot Amortised Cost
Non Current borrowings
Currant borrowings

Trade Payables

" A o

12218
4.91
52.52

28.30
824.75
3.47

189.61

57.79 |
974.32

5,774.00
272.55

53,867.58
25,240.09
758.49

Other financial liabilities 15 67.41 121.66
Total financial liabikities measured at amortised cost 7,118.76 79,988.23

Measured at Fair Velue throuph Profis or Loss > -

Towl financial liabilivies measured at Fair Value through
Profit or Losa

(8] Fair value hierarchy
The loilowsng table provides the fair value measurement tigrarchy of the Company's financia! assots and liabilities. The different levels have been
defined belov,

- Leve: 1t quotad prices {unzdjusted) in active markots for identical assets or liabilitios

- Level 2¢inputs other than qucled prices included within Lovel 1 that are obsarvable for the asset or liabsility, either directly (ie., as prices) ar
cily (i.c., derved from prices)
-Leve! 3tinputs for the asset or liability that 2re oot based an obcenvabie madket dow (unohservabls inputs)

Note: The Company does net have any financial assets which are meascrad a1 far value as on the reporting date
37 Financial Risk Management objectives and palicies

Tha Company’s principal financial liabilities compnise berrowings ia domeslic currency, cagital creditors and trade and other payables. The main
purpese of these finaecial Lobilities is to firance the Cormpany’s oparatioes. The Company's princigal financial assats include feans, trade and othar
receivabivs, cash and cash equivitlents, investments at cost/fair value ond deposits, that derive directly from its operations.

tof thase risks,

The Comaany is exposed to markot risk, crochl nsk aind bqudity riss The Company’s comior management oversees the managent

Tne Board of Direclors revigws ard 4

for managing cach of theso risks, which are summarised helow,




Bhuvee Stenovate Private Limited
fotes to financial statements as at and for the year ended 215t March 2023
{All amounts are in 1NR Lokhs, unless atherwise stated

A Market risk
Parket risk mcans that the fair value of future cask lows of o

af sistrement will fluctuate beeause of changes in markat prices. The goal of
market sk management is optisuzation of arofit and contreliing the exposure to market nsk within 2cceptabie limits, Market risk COmprises two
tynes of risk: Foreign currency ask’, interest rate risk’, and Price rick on traded goods',

(a} Forcign currency risk
The company undertakes transactions i USD/ GBR/ EURO

cancequently exposed (o exchanpe rate Hluctuations, Exchange Rate exgosuras ate

cd wathin approved pobcy patameters,

The Cempany has exposure to the risk that the fair value or future cash flaws of 3 financisl instrument wili fluctuate because of the changes in
foreign oxchange rates,

Particulor: As at Asat
e 315t March 2023 | 315t March 2022
uso uso

Financial Assets:
Trade receivables

Advances o Supplices

- 29,5638
Financial Liabilitics:
Trads payables - 2,79,484
Advance from Costomors - 1,725
MNet Farcx axposure . 5 - (2,51,656)

Foreign currency sensitivity

The company primarily deals in USO and thus is principally expaesed Lo foreign currency risks against U0, Sensitivity of profit or loss arises from
such receivablos and payables,

The Company's i

Az not made any export dusing the year and no lmports made curing the year,

As per management assessment of reazonable pessible changes in the exchange rate of +f~ 5% betwsan USD-INR currency pair, sensitivity of profit
of loss aply on outstanding fereign currnncy denominatad monetacy iterns at the period end is considered ta be insigaificant as expert and import

is insignilicant of 1010l ectivitios.




Bhuvee Stenavate Private Limited
Notes to financial stetements 95 3t and for the year ended 31st March 2023
(Al amounts are in INR Lakhs, unless atherwise stated)

{b} Interast rate risk
Tihe company is @xposed to interest raie risk due 1o fluctuationin rate

25 the rate of interest varies due to change in MCLR of respective banks and

cnange in the credit rating of the company

The campany monitors inter

trate risks regularly 0 ordec w averd exposure Lo interest rats risk on borrowings st variable interest rate.
The exposure of the Company's borrowings {o interest cate chanpes o

d are as follows:

end of the reporting per

(i} Interest rate risk axposure

The carrying ameunt of interest-bearing finangial instrurerts as of 31 14 °<

112075 and 31 March 2022 are as follows:

Particulars As at As at
31st March 2023 | 31st Miarch 2022

Variatla rate fing

8,774.40 25,240.08
Variabic ratz finzncial assels

(ii] Sensitivity analysis 0a the fair value of financial instruments with fixed interest rate
The Company does not sccaunt for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities ot fair vaiue through profit or foss, Therefore 5 change iainterest
rates at the rencrticg date would not affect profit or loss

Price Risk on Traded Goods
The compeny is impacted by the price valatdity of goods in which the Company trades, To minimize the rick related to price of traded goods, the
Company obtain order for sales from buyers prior to purchase af goods with immediate despatch to buyer,

8 Crodit risks
Ceedit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer of counterparty te a financial Instrument fails to meet s contractual
obligations, and vrises principally from the Company’s receivables from customers and others. In addition, credit risk arises from financial
puarantees,
The Company implements a credit risk manapement poticy under which the Company only transacts business with countorparties that have a
certain level of credit worthiness based on internal assessment of tie perties, financial condition, historical experience, and other factors. The

Company's expusure o credit risk is influanced mainly by the individual chzracteristics of each customer. The Company has established a credit

nelicy under which each new customer Is analysed individually for craditworthiness.

The Company estakhshes an allowance for imparrmant th

Gt represents s estimate of incurred asses in respact of trade and other receivables

The main components of ths silowance are o speofic loss and a collnctive foss

component that relates to indradually spmficant exposuic

cempeaent thiat are expeeled 1o oceur allaveanee 15 determinad based on histerieal data of payment statistics for simdar

financiai assets, Debt seeurities are analysed mdividually, and an exnected lose shail be diz v deducted from debt securities.,

o
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Bhuvee Stenovate Private timited

Notes to finoncial statements as at and for the year ended 31st March 2022
{All amaounts are in iNR Lakhs, unless otherwise s stated)

{i} Credit risk exposure

The carrying amount of finarcial assy
March 2023 an 31 Marsh 2072

LRenls e Graup’s macmum CXpQsure o credn sk, The maximom exposure to credit risk as of 31

= as folfows
As at
31st March 2022

R
i

Particulars Asat
31st Miarch 2023

Trade receivables {net}
122.18
4.91
62.52

Cash and Cach Equivalents
Other financiol Assets - Non Currant

he Com: . jeclive is (o ot all timos i f liqui i
@ Lompeny’s ebjective is w ot all timos maintain epiimum lavel of liquidity to mant its cash and collateral requirement at all times The need of

the funds of the cor ¢ be at by rnal acerual ‘
e the company are being mat by internal geer ual and Lorrovangs. The shart and medivm term requiremants are met through the
gh U

coinimied lines of coedit,

The toble provides undiscounted cash flow towards non-dervative financial tiahs lity and net sztiled derivative financial iiabitities into ralevant

es based on the remaining pariod st bafance shoot date to contractual maturity dato.

H 7 G -
H Payablein more | Total
A than 1 yaar ot

PO

e e
As at 315t March, 2023
#on Current Lorrowings

T S

huvee Stenovate Private Limited
Netes to financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Al amounts are in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

38 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

A, Risk management
The iundamantal goal of capital maragement are to: - saleguard their atility 1o centinge as a going concarn, so tha: they can continue to provide

returns flor shareholders and benafits for cthers sakeholders, and - maintain an optimal capital siructure to reduce the cost of capital.
The Board of Directors has the primary tes ibility to maintain a stzong capital base and reduce the cost of f capital threugh prudent monagement
of deplayed funds and feverzging opportunitios in domestic and inle rastional financial markets se as to malntain iovestor, creditar and market

confidance and Lo sustain future development of the business,
For the purpose of company’s capital management, capitai includes issuad capitat and all other equity reserves, The cempany manages its capital

siructure in light of changes in the economic and regulatory environment and the requirements of tha financial covenants.
Tha Company manzges its capital on the basis of nat debt to cauity ratio which is net debt divided by total equity. Net debt are long-term and
shorl-term debts as reduced by cash 3nd cash equivolents. The Company is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements.

The feliewing tble summarises the capital of the Company:

vEiticidan As ot As at
prarticulises 315t March 2023 | 31st March 2022
Borrowings 6,774.40 78,10¢.08
Lesy: Cash and cash equivalents 4.81 824.75
Net Debt 6,779.30 79,932.83
Equity 140.87 (22,050.23)
Total Capital (Equity + Net Debt) 6,920.18 57,842,60
Met Debt to Equity ratio 48.12 [3.62)

bt &l
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Bhuves Steavvate Prvate Lin

{4
Holes e inancststitements 35 at and for the year ended 31st March 2023
(Allamounts ace in INR Lakhs, enless othenwise staled)

46 Related Party Oisclosure persuant 1o Ind AS 24
(a) Ralsted Parties Name ol the iteiated Parios
(B Where Control Exist
Holding Entty Lagar Sofar WP (w2500 June, 2023}

{ii) Others

Entecpise howng icaatintluenge

B won & Steel Co Prvare Umised (Upto 25th June, 2022}
Euikavineom Prvate Liited (it 291h June, 2023)

Rabnen Yenmay Private Uimited (U pto 25th June, 2022)

BRG iMetal & Power Mrvate Lnuled {Upto 254 lune, 2022}

Stenovate Synergios and Frposts Prvate Lnited (Uplo 25th June, 2022
taser Pawer & infea Privste Lmited (woe.t 25(h June, 2022)

(ve.2.f, 25t Jung, 2022}

1. 25th June, 2022)

2 Uit (w2515 lune, 2022

Suncity Sheets Privats Lin.
AlFiranca Private Liy
G N Datui & Sans Fr

Fey ilanaperial Perianncl

{b) Detaits of Transactions wit

Uevech Goal
Aksnat Gozl
Santenp Goyal

h Refated Partios

wecctor (8th July 2022)
Dureclor (8th July 2022)
-Quecior jupio 25th June 2022)

Asat Asat
Mature ol Teansseticns fame of tahated partios 31t March 2023 318t March 2022
Transactions durning tie year
Sutes of geod Stenovale Syneegies & Exparts Pel Lid . 69.41
Sales of goods/service Rabirun Vinemay Privete Winied £ 3263
Real service provi Laser Fower & tnfra Pt Ltg 17.70 .
Rent service provided G M Dalui & Sons Privatz Limiterd 354 .
Laser Power & Infra Put. Lid 1186 -
Laser Power & Inira Put. Lid 5.90
Secunty Der ccepied Lager Powear 3 Infra Poz. Lt 3N =
Reimizaesement of expense Laser Salae tLP 128
Purzhaze of Raw mateaals Suncity Sheets Private Limited 5.60
Sanles of Raw matenials Suncity Sheets Provate Umites 149.67
Share capitalissued Laser Solar LLP 40.00 -
Ceposit Accentadl Laser Solar LLF 6,105.00
Loan Accented Al Fnance Frvate un 73100 .
Losa rzpaid A1 Finance Private Limised SL00 -
Securty Depesit pasd G M Dalut & Sons Prvale Linntes 1.02 -
Reraivables G M Dalur & Sans Frmale Limite: 0.24
Balances write afifvnte back Stengvale Synergies & Eraorts Pot Lid 316 .
Balances werite ollfwrile back Sundeep Goysl 50.04
Balances wiane sfifwnte back BRG Metat & Fower Pyt Lid. 0.5 .
Galances wiste offfwerita back Rabiun Vieinay Private Limited 105.83 .
Balances write sfffwnte back BRG Metal & Pawer PvtLid. 543 .
Balances wirite offfwrita back Evika Viacom vt Lid 189.20 .
Gufancus axal
Payabilos Stenovate Synerges & Exports Put Lid 116
Payablas Sangeep Goyal g 50.00
Payables BAG Melai & Power Py L . 0.54
Paysbles Rabirun Vinumay Povate L ed - 105.83
Roecoivabites BAG Mot & Power Py Led, . 5.43
Payables Bk Vincor Pl Ld . 189.20
Trade Receivables Laser Power &nfra et { 12.66 .
Secinity Qepaesit payabie Laser Power & Infza Pt 39.71 .
Uns2eured Loan pivahte Laser Sofar LLP 6,005 €O
unsccured Lhan payable AdFnence Proat 3 75240 -
Payables for expease Laser Satar LLP 125 -
Trade Recewadles Suncity Sheets Pravate Limtes 89.52 -
Trace paysibies Suncity Shaets Prats Limges $.66 o
Security Desosit gand G b4 Dalus & Sans Pavate Lunited 4.02 -




Bhuvee Stanovate Private Limited
Notes o financiol statemants as at and far the ycar ended faxh 31,2023
(Al amounts are in IR Lakns, unless othenwnse stated)

A1 mplementston of Resolution Sian
Pursuant ts continwing dataults in repoyment of borreuwe g8 eatlier o

t ) ungir the tnsel
@ CIRP apoheatinn widz s order datee 12 Mazch 20318

e Conipang, LEO Lani tone of the haancal @edtois of the Cempany) initiatzd
niy and Bankrupioy Cede, 2016, The ata Hatiooat Company Law Tribuaal {"HCLTY)
25p:e Mmuit'e altempts of the Insoivency Pro anal {“1P7] to attract rasolulion plans irem
potentiat Bidd2es, ne such subanssuens were recemed Consequently, ad as i last 1a8ort, the HCLT i5eued aa order for the Laquidation of the Company in its order
dated D7 Fubryary 2020

the Cargorate insolvency Resolution Pro
adrmtiel

Due te non-submission of resolution plan, NCUT passed 3a order of kquigation on 7 February 2020, Theraalizr, in compliance with the Insulvency and
Bankruptey Coce and in accordance vath the nsolvency and Sankruptey Seard o India (liquidation Process Regulation) 2016, the Official Liquidator invited
affers for sale of ali the ussots of the sa Campany as 2oing concern. Hon'ble HELT, vide the order dated 16 Jun2 2022 confirmed the sale by private treaty in
favour of the highest Ludder, i.e. Lazer Sotar LLP ("Acquirer”). Furihe
Thereafier, pus

2 Hon'lte NCLT also directed the liquidator to take further steps in accordanza with law,
suant to duections of Hon'biz Nauonal Company Law Appetiate Trbunal (RCLAT), vide urder dated 25 lsauary 2622, anothar tound of bidding
was conducted and therzaficr, the finat sale

rhificate dated 25 June 2022 (“Acquisiteon Oate”) was issuad Ly official Liquidatar o favour of Lacer Sular LR,

being the highest tudder for acquisiticn of the company wilh

9tsl consideraton of Ry, 6103 00 fakhs. NCLT further pranted several zeiels, white approving tha
o aH aspact concerming the {ompaay ana setling asid? ail the prior aacumbranges,

sequisition, ping effect 1o the post acquisitizn ir

Upon cammancement of hquidztion proceadings, ihe etncial hquidetor anpuitad by the NCY initiated the issuance of auction notices far iie sale of idenlified

assers on slump szle hasis, foliowed Ly an itomised basis at a lower vaivation, Hewerer, no inlzrcst was recawved fram any party,

Rezuiation 32 ol 1BEI (Lauidation frocess} Regulation 2026 provades vanous optons Jvarabie under (B fnr revivaifrehaiiliation of the Company or its business,
One ol the eptions cutined 1a Section 3240 the sale of the Corparate [zbine a2 a fomg concern, In order to ackicva the ahjeclive and as per the intent of 1BC
taw, after unsuccessiul suction altempts menticned eariier, Laser Solar tLP {"the £LP’) subs

ted ae intedocutary Application 10 the KCLT seeking approval for
it sale anc iranster of the Company a3 a Corporate Gebior on 3 going congern hans by way of @ private bid. HCLT vide 1ts crder dated 16 June 2022 confitmed
the private bid i favaue of LLP under regulation 324, cecogmany the 117 a5 1 highest Widder with o otal consiterziion of ds. 5,105 00 1akhs on a pinvate
treal

et bass, Subsequeatly, the hquidator ssucd the $ate Cortibitale 1y the 1P on 28

¢ 2022 = dtcordanze walh the NCLT'S arder ané the

sireimentioned regulations

Yool India tanother Enancal credion of e Compan

appealen o Hon'bie Navonat Company taw Appelizie Trbunal
na methedolagy adaptad far the cale. Follavang NCLAT'S directive w its order dated 25 ianuary 2023, the liquidatar conducted
ddng, Hawewer, no bids werg resaved rom any prospective boders. Subsequently, on 23 March 2023, the Lguidator issued anather Sate

et 10 be epeiative from 25 June 2022) cenfinung the sale of the Compzay 35 Carperate Dzblar 16 the LLF on gomg concern basis at the hid
pace of Rs. 5,105.00 lakhs as direcied by MNCLAT.

In the

6, o0 31 August 2022, the Company fied an intariecutory appheation vath NCLT seoking various reliefs. Tie MCLT vide its order dated 17 Octolber
2023 granted specific reliafs 95 reauested. Consequently, the Company undes1ook 2¢tions Lo giva effectof tie said reliefe vehich are summanzed 3¢ boiow.

1. Cancellstion of eaisting, share capital and suance of news share capiat of As. 300 akhs divdzd 1to 10,00,000 eGuily shares of Rs. 10 each, The cempany isin
prozess of ling necessary doruments with the Registear of Companies (ROC) for prang eflect of the same,

2. Satwfacton af all charges that huve been created and semainee unsatisfiog prior to the Date of Acquisition. The company is in process of fifing necassary
documents with the ROT for satisfacton of all the chary

3. Allepers:
back to Capri

ani aad (inancial creditors includie statutory habiduies (2.

e Contagent of not} up to the date of transfer has been extinguished and written

A, Assels wlich dre not recowaral
on Liguizatian

Loshing Sharz {apaat ant Secunties Neznmum

a6erowings (Seeersd and Unsecured;

Operatiens! Creditors angt Oiher Liab Btias 1,095,110
Total (A) 1,41,022.9%
Asstts

Inventanies -£12.01]

Trace Rece -83.3
Caah and gther Bank Bahacey -55% 04
a0y Intangiblz Assety

PRE fnthudieg

wete eff

“42,15897

Veador Advances, Botances vath goverament]
authorities, etc

Total (5} -49,118.49
Geand Total {A ] £4.204.31

-708.12
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Corporate social responsibility (CSRY

Tha Company is not required Lo spend any amount for Torporate Social Kesnonsvility actiaty for FY 2022-23 & FY 2021-22 pursuant 1o Section 135 of the
Compaines Act 2013

Tie compiiny has so;
hie same are

nce confirmations fro

rade raceivatiles and rade payablas, wharever such balance confirmations are cecowed by the Cempany,
cuntiled and appropriste adivsiments if requied, are made in he buchs of azcounts

Tha Conspany 6td not have any long tarm conleacts including Oerivative sontracus for whneh there were any matenal foreserable losses

Otber Statutory Informatinn

i) The Company ocs not nave any Benami

“ty, whare any procevenns has Been miated af pending against the Company for holding any Eenanm preperty

unier the Beaam Transscuoas (frahe

tutiont Act 1963 {45 of 1952 and rules mada tharounder

(i1} T Company has not iaded o investet i Crypta curtency or Virtuzl Currency dunng the finantil yeur

{m) The Company ¢oes ant hava any such transact:on which 5 not recorded m e Ho

of acceunts that has deen surrendered or diselosed 35 inceme during
the yesr 1a the tax assesseierts vinder the Income Tax Act 1961 (sudh us, search of Survdy of any oiher relzvant arovisians of ths Income Tax Aci, 1961
{m) Mo funds have been sdvanced o foaned oo mvesied {orher from Borrowsd funds Of shicre premium ar any other sources er kiad af funds) by the Company

10 62 10 any wther p

cienfs) o1 ertity(res), includiog foieizn en

pdanes | ovath the wnderstanding, vhuther recarded o wnting o athzewsse, that

the intermed

ry shall, directiy of induwectly kng o wivest in Clher persons or cabities ientihied i any manaer whalscevir Uy of on biehia!f of the Company

(“Uliaiate Beneficanes™) or rov

ANy puATaniee, seturily of the like on benatf of the Uinmate Seachiciarics,

(v) Mo Tunds Bave been received by the Tompany lrdin any perssa(s) ar ent

ing foreiga eatities {“Funding Pacties”), with the understaading,

whetdier recorded i weting of oiherwise, that the Company shall, drectly of mndwradtly, lond 2r iavest in ather parsons or entitas identificd 1n any manner

wisaisgaver by or aa betali of the Fending Party {*Uitmate Bensfiturios”) ot provide aay guaranlee, setunty of the ke en behalf of the Bltimate Banaficiaries.

(1) The company has not been declared wiltul defaulter by any baak ar financialinstitution or other lander or governiment ¢r any goverminent authorily.
The comparative financal :larmation of the Comaany meluded in these financial stateinents, ste based un the previously issued financial statements for the

y2ar enced March 31,2022 winith were audited by the predecessor sutitars

o, vide thewr report dated May 31, 2022, expressed 3n qualfizd opinion

The previous year fgeres are rechissilied where cansidered necessary La conlorm Lo tis year's classinication.

As perour report of even dite atached For Bhuvee Stencvate Private Limited
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